
 
AGENDA 

 
 



1 
 

 CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward #7 
Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward #4 

Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward #1 
Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 

Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward #3 
Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 

Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 
 

John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 

Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

 

AGENDA 
 

PHONE: 541-2249 
FAX: 541-2248 

 
e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 

www.hopewellva.gov 
rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 Date: August 14, 2018 MUNICIPAL BUILDING Closed Meeting:  6:30 p.m. 
Regular Meeting: 7:30 p.m. 

 
OPEN MEETING 

 
6:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 
 

PROPOSED MOTION: To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion, consideration, 
and interview of specific appointees of city council (city attorney, all boards, 
authorities, committees and commissions); (2) consultation with legal counsel and 
briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual or probable litigation, 
where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the 
negotiating or litigating posture of city council (water renewal, public works, police, 
zoning); and (3) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council 
related thereto and regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal 
advice by such counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1), (7), and 
(8), respectively. 

 
 Roll Call  

CLOSED MEETING 
 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public 

business matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in 

the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 

 
Roll Call 
 
MOTION: To amend the order of the agenda to enable city council to vote on appointees  
  prior to regular business, and to adopt the agenda as so amended. 
 
Roll Call 
 

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


2 
 

 
PROPOSED MOTION: To appoint _______________________ and 
________________________ to the School Facilities Committee; and to appoint 
_____________________ and ____________________ to the School Board/Council Working 
Group 
 
Roll Call 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

7:30 p.m.   Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 
 
Prayer by Chaplain Pamela F. Cooper of John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America led by Councilor Holloway. 
 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be 

approved or received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 
 
C-1 Minutes:  April 24, 2018; May 1, 2018; May 8, 2018; May 22, 2018; June 5, 2018; June 

21, 2018; July 10, 2018; July 31, 2018 
C-2 Pending List:   
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Both attached 
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   
C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: September 11, 2018 – Conditional Use Permit – City 

Point; Conditional Use Permit- Mesa; Rezoning Request – Western Street 
C-8 Information for Council Review: ARLS minutes 7-17-18; CVWMA minutes: 4-20-18, 5-

18-18; CPMT minutes 4-16-18, 5-31-18, 6-18-18; DDRC minutes: 10-4-17. 11-1-17, 3-7-
18, 4-4-18, 6-6-18, 7-11-18 minutes; and HRHA minutes: 5-14-18 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations:   
C-10 Additional Announcements: Announcement of Cities of Opportunity Grant; Unveiling of 

renovated Council Suite; Boards and Commissions Appreciation Dinner 
 

Public Hearings 
CITY CLERK: All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give name and, 

if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to five minutes. No person shall 

be permitted to address Council a second time until all others have been heard, and no one may 

speak more than twice on any subject in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to 

Council as a body, any questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no 

discussion without permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, 

or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers may be barred by 

the mayor from further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of 

Council. (See Rules 405 and 406) 

 
 



3 
 

PH-1 Continuation of Public Hearing Opened July 10, 2018 - Hopewell Redevelopment  
and Housing Authority request to amend the Hopewell Zoning Map to rezone 
property located at Cedar, Cypress and Westover Streets in the Highland Park 
subdivision from Residential, High Density (R-3) and Highway Commercial (B-3) to 
Residential Apartment (R-4) 

 
ISSUE:  The City has received a request from the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing  
Authority (HRHA) to rezone property identified as Sub-Parcel #’s 042-0095, 042-0195, 
and 042-0252, from R-3, Residential, Medium Density District and B-3, Corridor 
Development District to R-4, Residential.  The properties are located off of Winston 
Churchill Drive between Westover Avenue and Highland Avenue. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve HRHA’s 
request to amend the Hopewell Zoning Map to rezone property located at Cedar, 
Cypress and Westover Streets in Highland Park subdivision from R-3 and B-3, to 
R-4. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 

Communications from Citizens 
CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is 

part of the Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council 

shall approach the microphone, give name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, 

and limit comments to three minutes. No one is permitted to speak on any item scheduled for 

consideration on the regular agenda of the meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as 

a body, any questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion 

without permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or 

slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers, may be barred by the 

mayor from further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of 

Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.) 
 

Unfinished Business 
 
UB-1 General Registrar Request for Appropriation 
 

ISSUE:  The General Registrar has hired an Assistant Registrar at a salary higher than was 
budgeted for that position. Pursuant to Virginia Code §24.2-112, City Council sets the rate 
of pay for the assistant registrar, so the Registrar’s Office is seeking an appropriation of 
$9,758.44. 
 

 RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends that Council adhere to Virginia Code § 
24.2-112 and set whatever rate of pay Council deems appropriate for the assistant 
registrar, and to make any such additional appropriation. 

 



4 
 

MOTION:            
 
              
  Roll Call 
 
 
UB-2 Panhandling in Public Right of Way 
 

ISSUE: Individuals panhandling within the public right-of-way creates a public safety 
issue 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve placing 
signage in the right-of-way. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
UB-3 Littering 
 

ISSUE: Littering in Hopewell is at an all-time high and must be addressed.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council act on this matter as it sees fit. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
UB-4 Council Ward Improvement Fund Policy 
 

ISSUE: Council requested that certain funds be put aside for each councilors use to 
benefit their respective wards. During discussion, it was suggested that Council have a 
policy regarding the ward improvement fund, as well as establish categories, create an 
application, etc. These items have been drafted for Council review. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council act on this matter as it sees fit. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
  



5 
 

Regular Business 
 

Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1 Resolution appointing Assistant City Manager as Alternate to Riverside Regional 

Jail Authority (RRJA) 
 

ISSUE:  The RRJA Board consists of appointees from each jurisdiction and an alternate. 
The City of Hopewell currently has no alternate. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to appoint Charles 
Dane, Assistant City Manager, as alternate to the Riverside Regional Jail Authority. 

 
 MOTION:            
 
              
  
 Roll Call 
 
 
R-2 Request to establish two full-time permanent Benefit Program Specialist positions  
 with the Hopewell Department of Social Services 
 

ISSUE: Governor Northam signed Medicaid Expansion into law on June 7, 2018.   
Virginia joins 32 other states and the District of Columbia in expanding Medicaid 
coverage.  The measure is scheduled to take effect January 1, 2019 with applications 
accepted starting in November 2018. Approval is requested to hire two additional full-time 
staff members in anticipation of the increase in eligible applicants who will be applying for 
and receiving Medicaid coverage. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve the 
immediate hiring of two full-time permanent Benefits Program Specialists positions. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
  



6 
 

 
R-3 Request authority to approve renewal of service agreements for refuse and recycling 

services - CVWMA  
 

ISSUE:  Five-year contracts for refuse and recycling will expire June 30, 2019.  To  
ensure a smooth transition of services on July 1, 2019, the City's approval of service 
agreements needs to be renewed.    
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve the renewal 
of the service agreements with CVWMA, and authorize the City Manager to sign any and 
all documents. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
R-4 Treasurer’s Request to update City Code regarding animal license fees 
 

ISSUE:  The State has revised its laws regarding licensing fees and taxes for pets. The 
Treasurer’s office is seeking to update the City Code to match the State. [I would get rid 
of unnecessary capitalizations here and in other places] 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve the 
Treasurer’s request to update Sec. 6-31.1 Control of dangerous or vicious dogs 

pursuant to Virginia law. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
 
Reports of the City Attorney:   City council rules 
 
Reports of the City Clerk:  
 
Reports of City Council: 
 
 Committees  
 
 Individual Councilors   
 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 
 

Other Council Communications 

Adjournment 



 
REGULAR 
MEETING 

 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



 

MINUTES 
 



April 24, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

1 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD APRIL 24, 2018 
 

A meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Tuesday, April 24, 2018, at 6:30 p.m. in the City 
Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor 
 
     John Altman, City Manager 
     Stefan Calos, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
     Frazelle Hampton, Assistant City Clerk 
      
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:35 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - absent (arrived at 6:45 p.m.) 
Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 At 6:37 p.m. motion was made by Councilor Denton and seconded by Councilor Pelham to go into 
Closed Meeting for (1) discussion, consideration, and interviews of prospective candidates for employment 
(city attorney); (2) discussion of performance of specific employee of council (city clerk); (3) discussion of 
appointment of specific appointees of city council (HRHA, CVWMA); (4) discussion of performance of 
specific appointees of city council (EDA); (5) discussion of the acquisition of real property for a public 
purpose, where discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating 
strategy of city council (water renewal, cemetery, storm water); and (6) consultation with legal counsel 
employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal matters requiring the 
provision of legal advice by such counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1)  [four 
items], (3), and (8), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
   
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

Councilor Zevgolis  - absent (arrived at 6:45 p.m.) 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
Motion passed 6-0 



April 24, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

2 
 

 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak requested a roll call as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - not on dais  
 
 
AMEND/ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis to adopt the agenda. This motion was seconded by 
Vice-Mayor Gore. Councilor Luman-Bailey then made a motion to amend the agenda and to move 
Architectural Review Board (R-2) presentation to before Public Hearings.  The motion was seconded by 
Vice-Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
  
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA 
 
 Mayor Shornak called the meeting to order at 7:53 p.m., and thanked all for attending.  The 
prayer was led by Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag of the United States of America, led by Councilor Denton.  
 
  
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 A motion was made by Vice Mayor Gore to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey. 
 
C-1 Minutes:   
C-2 Pending List:   
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:   
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   
C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  



April 24, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

3 
 

C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: Budget: May 22, 2018 
C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: ARLS April 2018; Electoral Board – 3-28-18, 4-

12-18; Certification of Special Meeting 4-23-18; Hopewell Water Renewal 1-16-18 
C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: Proclamations: Police Week; Kids to Parks Day 
C-10 Additional Announcements: Award from James River Associates  

   
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
R-2   Architectural Review Board Presentation- Tevya Griffin, Director, Department of Development 
introduced Ms. Mary Calos, Chairperson for the Architectural Review Board. Ms. Calos thanked council 
for allowing the board to serve and introduced the other members of the board. The other members 
included Ms. Rita Joyner, ARB Vice-Chair, Ms. Edith Holsopple, Ms. Kathleen Vincent and Mr. Joseph 
Bailey, who were all in attendance at the meeting. Ms. Calos also thanked Chris Ward, City Planner for 
his graphic designs. Ms. Calos introduced Ms. Rita Joyner and Ms. Edith Holsopple. Ms. Joyner and Ms. 
Holsopple presented and provided updates on the homes undergoing preservation in the historic City 
Point district.  The ARB board approved six (6) applications for certificates of appropriateness, and a 
grant was awarded to provide cedar trees along historic cedar lane by the Cameron Foundation. VDOT 
awarded a grant to make improvements to Prince Henry Lane. Ms. Joyner and Ms. Holsopple discussed 
the updates made to each of the homes awarded the certificates of appropriateness. Mayor Shornak asked 
to have the ARB presentation added to the city website. No action required of Council. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
PH-1   The public hearing for the Condemnation Proceedings for 710 S. 6th Street opened at 8:41 p.m. 
John Altman, City Manager and Jeanie Grandstaff with Hopewell Regional Wastewater Treatment 
Facility, presented and was available to answer questions.  There were no request received from the 
public to speak on this issue. The public hearing closed at 8:42pm. 
 
Councilor Brenda Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement form that states that she works 
near this land and is a Hopewell Public School employee.  
 
 Councilor Pelham moved to adopt a resolution to acquire by condemnation approximately 2,757 square 
feet, or 0.063 acres, on property owned by Hopewell Property, LLC and HW Industrial LLC located at 
710 S. 6th Street, to be used as a 30-foot permanent easement, and to authorize the City Manager to 
execute all documents related thereto. The motion was seconded by Councilor Zevgolis. Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted:  
 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 



April 24, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

4 
 

    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
PH-2    The public hearing for the Hopewell 2028 Draft Comprehensive Plan opened at 8:43 p.m. We 
received three request from citizens to speak on this issue. Ms. Rita Joyner, citizen of Ward 1, spoke in 
favor of the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Brandon Butterworth, citizen of Ward 3, spoke in favor of the 
Comprehensive Plan. Katherine Padlewski, citizen of Ward 1, was the last public speaker and she was not 
in favor of the Comprehensive Plan.  The Public hearing closed at 8:44 p.m. Councilor Pelham made a 
motion to approve and adopt the 2028 Draft Comprehensive Plan as amended.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilor Zevgolis. 
 
  A substitute motion was made by Councilor Luman-Bailey to approve the 2028 Comprehensive Plan but 
to remove Woodlawn School from the plan but add option for the area of the map to remain residential 
and or commercial. The motion was seconded by Vice-Mayor Gore. A friendly amendment was made by 
Vice Mayor Gore to approve the 2028 Comprehensive Plan with the amendments with the exception of 
the Woodlawn school, and to allow Councilor Luman-Bailey to work with the Planning Commission and 
come back to Council with options. The motion failed for lack of a second. Councilor Pelham requested a 
call for the question.  Upon the roll call the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 6-1 
 
The substitute motion made by Councilor Luman-Bailey to approve the 2028 Draft Comprehensive Plan 
but to remove Woodlawn School from the plan but add option for the Area 3 of the map to remain 
residential and or commercial, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore was voted on. Upon the roll call, the 
vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - no 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - no 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - no 
Motion failed 5-2 
 
The original motion made by Councilor Pelham to approve and adopt the 2028 Draft Comprehensive Plan 
as amended, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis was voted on. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted:  
 
 



April 24, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

5 
 

    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 
    Councilor Holloway  - no 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 5-2 
 
PH-3    The public hearing was held to receive comments regarding the Amendment to Article XV-A, 
Chesapeake Bay Preservation Area Overlay District, and opened at 9:00 p.m. There was no request from 
the public to speak on this topic.  The public hearing closed at 9:01 p.m. Councilor Denton made a motion 
to approve the amendment to Article XV-A, Chesapeake Bay Preservation Area Overlay District. The 
motion was seconded by Vice-Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted:  
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
PH-4    The public hearing was held to receive comments regarding the Amendment to Article XVI, Site 
Plan Regulations, and opened at 9:03 p.m. There was no request from the public to speak on this topic. 
The Public hearing closed at 9:04 p.m. Councilor Pelham made a motion to approve the Amendment to 
Article XVI, Site Plan Regulations. The motion was seconded by Councilor Zevgolis. Upon the roll call, 
the vote resulted:  
 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS: 
 
There was no request from citizens to communicate with Council.  
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1   Approval of 2018 Tax Rate- John Altman, City Manager, presented and reviewed the tax rate to 
Council. He ended the presentation fielding questions of Council.  



April 24, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

6 
 

Councilor Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement form that states that she works for 
Hopewell City Public Schools. Mayor Shornak submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement form that 
states her daughter is a City of Hopewell employee.  
 
Councilor Denton made a motion to approve and adopt a tax at the rate of $1.13 per One Hundred Dollars 
($100.00) of assessed valuation on real estate; a tax at the rate of $3.05 per One Hundred Dollars 
($100.00) of assessed valuation on machinery and tools; a tax at the rate of $0.10 per One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation on one (1) motor vehicle used in the performance of his/her duties 
as a bona fide member of the Hopewell Emergency Crew; a tax at the rate of $3.50 per One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation on tangible personal property, except that real and tangible 
personal property of Public Service Corporations shall be taxed in accordance with Chapter 26, Title 58.1 
of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended. The motion was seconded by Councilor Holloway. Upon the 
roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - not on dais 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 (Per Council Rule 105) 
 
R-3   Grant from Virginia Department of Historic Resources (DHR)-   John Altman, City Manager, 
presented and reviewed the grant awarded to the City. He ended his presentation fielding questions from 
Council. Councilor Luman-Bailey made a motion to authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement 
between the City of Hopewell and the Virginia DHR to approve and appropriate grant funds in the 
amount of $10,250. The motion was seconded by Vice-Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
 
Reports of City Attorney: - City Attorney did not have any reports. 
 
Reports of City Clerk: - City Clerk did not have any reports. 
 
Reports of City Council: - City Council did have not have any reports.  
 
 Committees-  
 



April 24, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

7 
 

  Youth Services Commission (YSC) - Vice Mayor Gore provided an updated. She discussed the forum 
they had on April 19th and the initiative to visit schools to promote the Youth Services Commission and the 
Office on Youth.  
 
 Individual Councilors-   
 
 Vice Mayor Gore- Made a request to City Council to create and Ad-hoc Committee to discuss joining other 
Virginia Localities to become an ACT Work Ready Community. She would like to form an exploratory 
committee on how to proceed and report to council recommendations. Vice Mayor Gore made a motion to 
approve the creation of the City Council Work Ready Community AD-Hoc committee. The motion was 
properly seconded by Councilor Pelham.   
Councilor Zevgolis made a substitute motion to move the creation of the City Council Work Ready 
Community Ad-Hoc committee be added under regular business at the next council meeting. The substitute 
motion was seconded by Councilor Denton. Vice Mayor Gore stated per council rules this is where this 
request would go on the agenda.  
 
An additional substitute motion was made by Vice Mayor Gore to meet and discuss, along with Councilor 
Luman-Bailey, the Work Ready Community project in conjunction with the City Manager and report back 
to city council the findings. The motion was seconded by Councilor Pelham. Upon the roll call, the vote 
resulted 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
Citizen/Councilor Requests 
 
Councilor Pelham requested for the city attorney to place on the agenda consideration to change rule 
about abstaining. She requested that one rule, every meeting, under the city attorney section. 
 
 Councilor Zevgolis requested for the city manager to provide information to city council on the land 
acquisition of $420k; between Round Hope Church and the school board. 
 
Other Council Communications-  
 
 
MOTION TO EXTEND 
 
 At 10:27 p.m. motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis to extend the meeting to return to close 
session. The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted, 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 



April 24, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

8 
 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 11:30 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - not on dais (left at 11:25 p.m.) 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - no  
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 5-1 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 11:38 p.m. motion was made by Councilor Denton to adjourn the meeting. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey. All council responded “aye” to all in favor say “aye”. Meeting was 
adjourned. 
 
      
       /s/ Jackie M. Shornak    
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington   
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk        



May 1, 2018 
Special Meeting 

 

1 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD MAY 1, 2018 
 

A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Tuesday, May 1, 2018, at 6:30 p.m. in the 
City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, and 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor 
 
     John Altman, City Manager 
     Charles Dane. Assistant City Manager 
     Stefan Calos, Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
     Frazelle Hampton, Assistant City Clerk 
      
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:31 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 
 
AMEND/ADOPT AGENDA  
 
 Vice Mayor Gore made a motion to amend the agenda to go into Closed Meeting.   The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Pelham. Councilor Zevgolis called a point of order and asked if seven votes were 
needed to amend the agenda to go into closed session. He expressed concerns as to whether this is a council 
issue. Stefan Calos, City Attorney said this is just an update and it okay to have this discussion. Upon the 
roll call, the vote resulted: 
   
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
 



May 1, 2018 
Special Meeting 

 

2 
 

 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 Vice Mayor Gore made a motion to go into Closed Meeting for (1) consultation with legal counsel 
and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual or probable litigation where such 
consultation in an open meeting would adversely  affect the negotiating and ligating posture of city council 
(Electoral board); and (2) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related 
thereto and other specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by counsel retained by City 
Council, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (7) and (8), respectively. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Pelham.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
   
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 

Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 7:11 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
WORK SESSION 
 
 John Altman, City Manager, discussed the FY 19 Operating and Capital Budget. He reviewed and 
answered a list of questions previously given to him by several councilors. Mr. Altman discussed the 
breakdown of base salary versus benefits for the Economic Development Manager, Accounting 
Compliance Tech (CSA) and the IT Support Specialist position. Councilor Pelham expressed some 
concern about the Economic Development Manager position and asked for a description of the job duties.   
Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager provided additional insights to address the concerns of Councilor 
Pelham., and explained that the position allows him to accomplish more and ultimately be more effective 
and securing and closing deals for the city, and listed several groups and projects that the Economic 
Development Manager is currently involved in.  Mr. Dane fielded and answered additional questions from 
council.  Mayor Shornak spoke in favor of the Economic Development Manager, and expressed that 
because this is a behind the scene position that most people are not aware of what the positions entails. 
 



May 1, 2018 
Special Meeting 

 

3 
 

  Mr. Altman continued his presentation on the FY19 Operating and Capital Budget. He ended his 
presentation by answering additional questions from council.  A request was made by Councilor Zevgolis 
to have a time study completed in order to ensure that every department is streamlined and working 
effectively.     
 
Vice Mayor Gore submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement surrounding the discussion of  Health 
Insurance. 
     
ADJOURN 
 
 At 8:17 p.m., motion was made by Councilor Denton to adjourn the meeting. The motion was 
seconded by Mayor Shornak. All councilors responded “aye” to the question.  Meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
       
       /s/ Jackie M. Shornak    
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington   
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



May 8, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD MAY 8, 2018 

 
A Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Tuesday, May 8, 2018, at 6:30 p.m. in the City 

Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor 
 
     John Altman, City Manager 
     Charles Dane. Assistant City Manager 
     Stefan Calos, Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
     Frazelle Hampton, Assistant City Clerk 
      
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:31 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - absent (arrived at 6: 35p.m.) 
Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - absent (arrived at 6:36 p.m.) 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 A motion was made by Vice Mayor Gore, to go into Closed Meeting for (1) discussion, 
consideration, and interviews of prospective candidates for employment (city attorney); (2) discussion of 
appointment of  specific appointees of city council (Ashford Civic Plaza, HRHA); (3) discussion of 
performance of specific appointees of city council (EDA); (4) discussion of the acquisition of real property 
for a public purpose, where discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position 
or negotiating strategy of city council (water renewal, cemetery, stormwater); (5) consultation with legal 
counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual or probable litigation, negotiating 
or litigating posture of city council (cemetery), and (6) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained 
by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice 
by such counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1)  [three items], (3), (7) and (8), 
respectively.  The motion was seconded by councilor Luman-Bailey. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
   
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 



May 8, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent (arrived 6:36 p.m.) 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - absent (arrived 6:35 p.m.) 
 
Motion passed 5-0 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 7:32 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Motion was made by Councilor Denton to adopt the agenda. The motion was seconded by 
Councilor Pelham.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
  
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak requested a roll call as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
 
  



May 8, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA 
 
 Mayor Shornak called the meeting to order, and thanked all for attending.  The prayer was led by 
Minister Ernest Armstrong of Hopewell, Virginia, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the 
United States of America led by Mayor Shornak.  
 
  
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 Councilor Denton moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Mayor Shornak raised concerns about 
the electoral board minutes, and wanted to know if Council approved the Consent Agenda, would it also 
be approving the minutes. Vice Mayor Gore stated the minutes are only for review. Stefan Calos, City 
Attorney, agreed with Vice Mayor Gore.   Councilor Zevgolis requested to remove C-8 and add to regular 
agenda. There was no motion was required and C-8 was moved to regular agenda as R-5. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Pelham 
 
C-1 Minutes:   
C-2 Pending List:   
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:   
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   
C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: Budget: May 22, 2018 
C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: ARLS April 2018; Electoral Board – 3-28-18, 4-

12-18; Certification of Special Meeting 4-23-18; Hopewell Water Renewal 1-16-18 
C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: Proclamations: Police Week; Kids to Parks Day 
C-10 Additional Announcements: Award from James River Associates  

   
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
PH-1 A public hearing was held to receive comments regarding the proposed FY2019 budget.  The 
Public hearing opened at 7:56 p.m. Johnny Partin, of Ward 3, came forward and recommended cuts to 
city council’s budget and to use those funds for infrastructure and storm water management program. 
Public hearing closed at 8:05pm.  A motion was made by Councilor Luman-Bailey to approve the 
FY2019 city budget on first of two readings. The motion was seconded by Councilor Denton. 
 



May 8, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 
 Councilor Pelham expressed several concerns about the FY2019. She wanted to vote on the entire 
FY2019 budget and piecemeal it; that it was okay to remove the schools, but really wanted to vote on the 
budget as a whole. City Manager Altman said the capital budget can be separate, but to finalize the 
general budget and budget resolution and it will not include capital projects. Councilor Pelham was not in 
agreement with adding the three Full Time Employees (FTE) this year when positions were frozen last 
because of the CAFR. 
 
  A substitute motion was made by Councilor Pelham to amend the motion to approve School 
Board portion of the budget and bring back the remaining budget with CIP. Councilor Luman-Bailey 
spoke about the multiple work sessions and three Finance Committee meeting, and that is not uncommon 
to pass operating budget first and do the CIP later. Councilor Luman-Bailey stated that the 2.9% increase 
is very small and that two of the FTE were already part-time.  
 
 Vice Mayor Gore also stated that she is not comfortable approving the budget without the CIP. 
She would like a work session to go over the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). Vice Mayor Gore inquired 
about the many projects are still frozen from last year, the CIP fund, the debt service and the bond ratings 
for city or sewer. Vice Mayor Gore is in favor of approving school board portion. City Manager Altman 
responded to Vice Mayor’s request to have a work session to discuss issues, COLA and health care and 
positions.  Mayor Shornak called for the vote. Upon the roll call the vote resulted 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - no 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - no 
Motion failed 5-2 
 
 
  Councilor Zevgolis stated he would like to see the budget passed with a 7-0 vote but understood 
it may not happen at this time. Councilor Zevgolis reminded everyone about the meeting the state has set 
for May 16th and that the Resolution of indebtedness must be passed by the ordinance in two readings; 
passing a budget requires an ordinance.  
 
 Mayor Shornak express her concerns about the budget and all being in support of the City 
Manager. In addition, she also expressed her concerns about some members of council texting. Councilor 
Pelham called a Point of Order regarding comments made by the Mayor.  Mayor Shornak expressed her 
concern again and stated that the budget should be passed on the first reading. Councilor Pelham called 
another Point of Order regarding the Mayor speaking about members of council in a negative way. 
 
  Councilor Pelham would like to see money given back to the citizens. Councilor Luman-Bailey 
asked the March Altman, City Manager, what would be held up if the budget is only partially approved. 
Mr. Altman said nothing and that is just the best practice to approve the city and school budget at the 
same time. Mr. Altman requested guidance on do we bring back with the COLA and insurance. Councilor 
Luman-Bailey stated that the budget would not be effective until July 1 and there is no negative impact, 
just uncertainly regarding COLA, and wanted to recognize the finance committee for their hard work.  
 
 Councilor Denton also expressed her concerns about the budget and felt that is council’s 
responsibly to support and trust the City Manager and Assistant City Manager. City Council should not 



May 8, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 
micromanage the City Manager.  She praised the City Manager and Finance Director. Vice Mayor Gore 
replied that the City Manager prepares the budget and City Council approves the budget. Mayor Shornak 
called for the vote. Upon the roll call the vote resulted 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - no 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - no 
Motion passed 4-3 
 
Vice Mayor Gore submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement about the budget regarding the Health 
Insurance portion. 
 
Council Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement about the budget stating that she is a City 
of Hopewell School employee.  
 
 Councilor Pelham moved to approve the school board budget only and bring back the rest of the 
budget with the CIP. The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted:  
. 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - no 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
Motion passed 5-2 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS: 
 
Shamika Lewis, Ward 7 spoke to council. Ms. Lewis expressed concerns about only seeing Councilors 
during election season and not seeing them in the community after that. She also spoke about the 
numerous murders in the city and fear. Ms. Lewis spoke about her group the Community on Change and 
how it plans to protect all the citizens of Hopewell in several ways. She invited everyone to a community 
forum that will take place May 31st from 6pm-8pm at the Elks Lodge.  
 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1   Virginia Brownfields Restoration and Economic Redevelopment Assistance Fund Program: 
Site Assessment and Planning Grant- Jake Elder, Economic Development Coordinator, presented. He 
spoke about the grant and ended his presentation by fielding questions from Council. Councilor Denton 



May 8, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 
made a motion to approve the Virginia Assessment and Planning Grant and authorize the City Manager to 
sign the agreement once approved by the City Manager. The motion was seconded by Mayor Shornak. 
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
     
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
R-2   Appropriate $70,000.00 for Fire Department to Repair/Replace Equipment-   Fire Chief Hunter 
presented. He discussed and provided updates about the repair and replacement of equipment for the Fire 
Department. He ended his presentation by answering questions from Council. Vice Mayor Gore wanted to 
know if there was projected timeline and Mr. Hunter said he would like to have this complete as soon as 
possible. Councilor Holloway asked Mr. Hunter to express the importance of this equipment; and Mr. 
Hunter said that the equipment is vital. Mayor Shornak made a motion to approve the appointment of up 
to $70,000.00 from uncommitted funds from the Public Safety Buildings project to repair/replace the fire 
station alerting system, and authorize the City Manager to sign all documents related thereto. The motion 
was seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
R-3   Request from the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority to rezone property- Tevya 
Griffin, Director, Department of Development, introduced Tavares McCoy from HRHA who presented.  
He provided updates to the rezoning and discussed the displacement of 52 families in the Davisville 
community. Councilor Pelham requested a work session and asked that the HUD requirements, and 
additional programs available also through HUD, be brought back to discuss during that work session. A 
public hearing will be held at a later date to discuss this matter. No action required of council at this time.   
 
     
R-4   Request by Freedman Point Limited Partnership for Easement Agreement- Austin Anderson, 
Public Works Engineering Construction Manager presented. He ended his presentation answering 
questions from Council. Council requested to see the agreement. Bruce Watts, VP from WODA stated 
that in order to stay on schedule to close with HUD on May 30th and the easement is needed to close with 
Riley Ingram on May 22nd. Councilor Pelham made a motion to approve the Freedom Point Limited 
Partnership Easement Agreement, and authorize the City Manager to sign the Agreement once approved 



May 8, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 
by the City Attorney. The motion was seconded by Councilor Zevgolis. Upon the roll call, the vote 
resulted.  
 
     
Mayor Shornak submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement about the budget stating that her 
Daughter, Michelle Ingram, is an employee of the City of Hopewell. 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - no 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 6-1 
 
 
R-5   Information for Council Review(C-8) to Accept the Minutes received for filing only- This item 
was initially on the consent agenda was moved to regular business. Councilor Pelham made a motion 
accept the minutes received for filing only. The motion was seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted.  
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
Reports of City Attorney: - there was nothing to report 
 
Reports of City Clerk: - there was nothing to report 
 
Reports of City Council: - there was nothing to report 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 10:32 p.m. motion was made by Councilor Pelham to extend the meeting. The motion failed for 
lack of a second. Vice Mayor Gore made a motion to adjourn the meeting and it was seconded by Councilor 
Denton. All council responded “aye” to all in favor say “aye”. Meeting was adjourned.   
   
       /s/ Jackie M. Shornak    
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington   
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk        



May 22, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

1 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD MAY 22, 2018 
 

A Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Tuesday, May 22, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. in the City 
Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor 
 
 
     John Altman, City Manager 
     Charles Dane. Assistant City Manager 
     Stefan Calos, Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
     Frazelle Hampton, Assistant City Clerk 
      
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:00 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - absent (arrived at 6:02 p.m.) 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - absent (arrived at 6:03 p.m.) 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 Motion was made by Councilor Pelham to go into Closed Meeting for (1) discussion, consideration, 
of prospective candidates for employment (city attorney), (2) discussion of a specific appointee of city 
council (CPMT) in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1).  The motion was seconded by 
Councilor Zevgolis.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
     
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - absent (arrived at 6:02 p.m.) 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - absent (arrived at 6:03 p.m.) 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 5-0 
 
 
 
  



May 22, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

2 
 

AMEND AGENDA TO RETURN TO CLOSED MEETING 
 
 Councilor Denton made a motion to amend the agenda for Council to return to closed session for 
the purpose of one item. A Point of Order was called by Councilor Pelham, in regards to if we need to 
specify what Virginia Code you are using to return to closed session. Stefan Calos, City Attorney, said it is 
a two-step process. You amend the agenda to go back into Closed meeting and once it is agreed upon, you 
state what you will discuss in closed meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey. 
 
 An amended motion was made by Councilor Luman-Bailey to go back into Closed Meeting for the 
discussion of a specific appointee of City Council (1) (CPMT), in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-
3711 (A) (1).  The motion was seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
        
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 7:55 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
ADOPT/AMEND AGENDA 
 
 Councilor Zevgolis made a motion to amend the agenda to add an appointment. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - no 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - no  
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes  
Motion passed 5-2 



May 22, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

3 
 

 
MOTION TO APPOINT LAUREN WHITNEY HOVIS 
 
 Councilor Denton made a motion to amend the agenda to appoint Lauren Whitney Hovis to the 
Community Policy and Management Team (CPMT) board. The motion was seconded by Councilor 
Zevgolis. Vice-Mayor Gore expressed concerns regarding investigations surround the CPMT board and 
this appointment. A point of order was called by Mayor Shornak, that this issue should not be discussed 
in public. Vice Mayor Gore stated that all the information is open and available to the public, and that she 
does not feel comfortable appointment without doing an interview first. Point of Order by Councilor 
Zevgolis the person being appointed is being maligned. The chairman of the CPMT board asked for Ms. 
Hovis to be appointed. Stefan Calos, City Attorney wanted to clarify what position was being filled. Mr. 
Calos overruled the point of order by Councilor Zevgolis. Councilor Denton stated that she and Councilor 
Zevgolis are serving on the board and they are both aware of the difficulties and both are working to 
make changes. Councilor Pelham also expressed concerns and will not vote to appoint without an 
interview as well. Mayor Shornak called for the vote. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - no 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 
    Councilor Holloway  - no 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - no  
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes  
Motion failed 4-3 
 
 A substitute motion was made by Councilor Pelham to interview the candidate for the service 
provider position for the Community Policy and Management Team (CPMT) board. The motion was 
seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes  
Motion passed 4-3 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak requested a roll call as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 



May 22, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

4 
 

 
  
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA 
 
 Mayor Shornak called the meeting to order at 8:23 p.m., and thanked all for attending.  The 
prayer was led by Chaplain Ronnie Brown of John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America led by Councilor Luman-Bailey.  
 
  
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 Councilor Denton made a motion to approve the consent agenda. The motion was seconded my 
Councilor Pelham. 
  
  Austin Anderson, Public Works Engineering Construction Manager gave an update on the 
Gateway project, and said that the projected date of completion should be July 4, 2018.  
 
C-1 Minutes:   
C-2 Pending List:   
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Personnel Report attached 
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   
C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: June 12, 2018 – School Board appointments; B-1 Zoning 

amendment request; Capital Improvement Plan review 
C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: Water Renewal 4-17-18; Appomattox Regional 

Library System Board Report 5-15-18; HRHA minutes 3-12-18; 
C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: Run for the Wall Event Proclamation; National 

Public Works Week 
C-10 Additional Announcements: VDOT Transportation Alternatives Program Announcement; 

Gateway Project Update; Introduction of new General Registrar 
   
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
There were no public hearings 
 
 
 



May 22, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

5 
 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS: 
 
Brandon Howard, Ward 5 spoke to council. He addressed council regarding having a current member of 
the school board removed. Point of Order was called by Councilor Pelham and Vice Mayor Gore. The 
person in question could not be discussed before council. Mr. Calos sustained the point of order.  
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1   Fiscal Year 2019 School Board Operating Budget- John Altman, City Manager addressed council 
regarding the FY 2019 School Board Operating Budget. No action required of council.  
     
R-2   Healthcare Cost Increase and 2% COLA-   John Altman, City Manager addressed council. He 
spoke about the CIP and asked for guidance and that council take action on the healthcare and 2% COLA 
increase. Councilor Pelham would like to not have the budget piecemealed. Councilor Luman-Bailey 
expressed concerns about adopting this portion of the budget.  Vice-Mayor Gore requested if she could 
receive an update on the finance meeting. Mayor Shornak and Councilor Denton stated that they are in 
support of the 2% (COLA) and Healthcare Cost Increase. Mayor Shornak wanted to know what position 
the city is in fiscally. John Altman, City Manager, said the city is fiscally healthy, but needs to reestablish 
policies and procedures.  Councilor Denton made a motion to approve the Healthcare cost and the entire 
2% COLA.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Shornak.  Councilor Pelham made a substitute motion to 
approve the Healthcare cost and to hold off on the 2% COLA until the June 12th, 2018 meeting.  The 
motion was seconded by Vice-Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
 Vice Mayor Gore submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement regarding the Health Insurance. 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 5-2 
 
R-3   ShotSpotter and HUD Emergency Safety and Security Grant- Charles Dane, Assistant City 
Manager, presented and explained the ShotSpotter program. Upon the conclusion of his presentation, he 
fielded questions from Council. No action taken by council at this time.   
 
     
R-4   Proposed Amendment to Article XV-A, Chesapeake Bay Preservation Area Overlay District- 
Tevya Griffin, Director, Department of Development presented. Upon competition of her presentation, 
she fielded questions from Council.  Councilor Luman-Bailey made a motion to resolve to approve the 
amendment to Article XV-A, Chesapeake Bay Preservation Area Overlay District. The motion was 
seconded by Vice-Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 



May 22, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

6 
 

    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - not on dais 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 (Per Council Rule 105) 
 
R-5   Proposed Amendment to Article XVI, Site Plan Regulations- Tevya Griffin, Director, 
Department of Development presented. Upon completion of her presentation, she fielded questions from 
Council.  Vice-Mayor Gore made a motion to resolve to approve the amendment to Article XVI, Site Plan 
Regulations. The motion was seconded by Councilor Pelham. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - not on dais 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 (Per Council Rule 105) 
 
R-6   Spot Blight- Tevya Griffin, Director, Department of Development presented. Upon completion of 
her presentation she fielded questions from Council.  Councilor Pelham made a motion to hold a public 
hearing on June 12. The motion was seconded by Vice-Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
MOTION TO EXTEND THE MEETING 
 
 At 10:32 p.m. motion was made by Councilor Pelham to extend the meeting. Vice-Mayor Gore 
seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted. 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 



May 22, 2018 
Regular Meeting 

 

7 
 

 
Reports of City Attorney: - Mr. Calos discussed taking rules in order until all rules are updated. Mayor 
Shornak asked to have it put on the agenda. 
 
Reports of City Clerk: - Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk discussed considering upgrades to furniture in 
Council Conference room. 
 
Reports of City Council: - There were no additional reports. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 11:13 p.m. motion was made by Councilor Denton to adjourn the meeting and it was seconded 
by Vice-Mayor Gore. All council responded “aye” to all in favor say “aye”. Meeting was adjourned. 
      
       /s/ Jackie M. Shornak    
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington   
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk        



June 5, 2018 
Special Meeting 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD JUNE 5, 2018 

 
A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Tuesday, June 5, 2018, at 6:30 p.m. 

in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, and 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor  
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor 
 
     John Altman, City Manager 
     Charles Dane. Assistant City Manager 
     Stefan Calos, Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
     Frazelle Hampton, Deputy City Clerk 
  
ROLL CALL 
 
 Vice-Mayor Gore opened the meeting at 6:30 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - absent (arrived at 7:00 p.m.) 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 
 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 At 6:32 p.m., Councilor Zevgolis made a motion to go into Closed Meeting for (1) 
discussion, consideration, and interviews of prospective candidates for employment (city attorney); 
in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1). The motion was seconded by Councilor 
Denton.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
   
    Mayor Shornak   - absent  
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
Motion passed 6-0 



June 5, 2018 
Special Meeting 

 
 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 8:40 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-
meeting requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
    Councilor Zevgolis  - not on dais 
 
Motion passed 7-0 (per counsel rule 105) 
 
WORK SESSION- City Manager discussion regarding the FY19 Operating & Capital Budgets 
 
 John Altman, City Manager introduced James Sanderson, Senior Vice President of 
Davenport & Company. Mr. Sanderson presented and discussed the summary of debt and agency 
ratings for the City of Hopewell.  He also discussed the tax-supported bonds that are outstanding, and 
provided information about the bonds’ maturity dates. He noted that currently, Moody’s and S & P 
have withdrawn their ratings on the City; however, Fitch is still reporting the City as having an AA- 
rating, which is a very strong rating for a locality. Mr. Sanderson clarified that once the CAFRs are 
completed, the other agencies will likely restore Hopewell’s ratings, which have been historically 
excellent. Mr. Sanderson reviewed the tax-supported debt services and provided Council a 
breakdown of the total debt services over a twenty-year period. Mr. Sanderson then fielded questions 
from Council, which completed his presentation. 
 
  Mr. Altman, City Manager, discussed the FY19 operating and capital budgets. He provided 
an update, which included the fact that revenues had been reduced by a million dollars due to a 
coding error, which resulted in Staff having to reduce items in the capital improvement budget 
accordingly. He noted that the courthouse had a roof leak which is categorized as an emergency, 
which further reduced the amount remaining for capital improvements projects.  Councilor Pelham 
expressed concern that the reduced CIP budget would adversely affect the paving and curb and gutter 
work that Public Works was doing. Johnnie Butler, the City Engineer advised that even with the cuts, 
due to the matching grants from VDOT, they would still be able to continue all road, paving, curb 
and gutter projects. Mr. Altman fielded additional questions of Council, and then yielded the floor to 
Vice Mayor Gore.  
 
 Vice Mayor Gore discussed plans to make improvements to the council conference room, 
council chambers, and the additional conference room, in council chambers, currently being used for 
storage. She provided estimates for each of the items being renovated and explained the need for the 
renovation.  Some councilors expressed concern over the costs, but the Vice Mayor explained that all 
would be purchased using the approximately $67,000 the clerk has in salary savings. The City 



June 5, 2018 
Special Meeting 

 
Attorney confirmed that Rule 414 provides that all decisions about the use of chambers shall be made 
by the Clerk, subject to appeal to Council, that the chambers shall not be rearranged by anyone 
except with the permission of the Clerk, who is the sole keeper of the keys to the chambers, and is 
the person who gives permission for use of the chambers' equipment. Councilor Zevgolis advised he 
was okay with the project as long as there were funds to cover it. He then asked to be excused from 
the meeting on an unrelated issue. The Clerk indicated she would make revisions to the second 
conference room but would hold off on revisions to the Council Chambers pending meetings with 
individual councilors. 
 
MOTION TO EXTEND THE MEETING 
 
 At 10:32 p.m. motion was made by Vice Mayor Gore to extend the meeting. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Holloway. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted. 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - abstain 
 
Motion passed 4-3 (per counsel rule 105) 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 10:50 p.m., Councilor Denton made a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion was 
seconded by Vice-Mayor Gore. All councilors responded “aye” to the question.  Meeting was 
adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
       
       /s/ Jackie M. Shornak    
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington   
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



 
Special Meeting 
June 21, 2018 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD JUNE 21, 2018 

 
A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Thursday, June 21, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. 

in Council Chambers in the Council Conference Room, 300 North Main Street, Drive, Hopewell, 
Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor Ward 1 (left at 6:28 p.m.) 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward 2 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward 6 
 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
     Frazelle Hampton, Deputy City Clerk 
     Stefan Calos, Sands Anderson, City Attorney (left at 6:06  
     p.m.) 
 
  ABSENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor* 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor* 
     Janice Denton, Councilor* 
     John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
 
* This was a Work Session with CDBG, which only impacts Wards 1, 2, 6 and 7.  
 No other councilors, nor the City Attorney or City Manager are required to attend. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Councilor Pelham opened the meeting at 6:05 p.m. Councilor Holloway gave the prayer. Roll 
call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - absent 
Vice Mayor Gore  - absent 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - absent 
Councilor Denton  - absent 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 
 
 
 Tevya Griffin, Director of Development, introduced Bill Dore to discuss the proposed budget 
for the Community Block Development Grant funds. Mr. Dore discussed the amount of money to be 
disbursed. He said the HUD allocation for Hopewell was $177,848; however, there were repurposed 
funds from FY 2014-2015 ($13,210) and FY 2-17-2018 ($17,950.83), making a total of $195,798.83 
available. 
 
 Mr. Dore and Council members reviewed the requests for funding and discussed the 2018-
2019 Appropriation recommendations. Councilor Pelham asked to increase the CARES appropriation 
to $5,000 and to decrease the amount the Catholic Charities receives to $2,052.  All councilors 



 
Special Meeting 
June 21, 2018 

 
present were in favor of this suggestion. Mayor Shornak had submitted suggestions in writing, 
including increasing the funds to James House and the Hopewell Food Bank, and wanting to 
concentrate on the elderly.  All of her suggestions were agreed upon by all present. There was further 
discussion, and Mr. Dore said he would prepare a presentation for the June 26, 2018 showing all of 
the revisions and suggestions to allocations. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 The meeting was adjourned at 7:09 p.m. 
 
 
       /s/ Jackie M. Shornak    
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington   
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



July 10, 2018 
Regular Meeting and Work Session 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING AND WORK SESSION OF CITY COUNCIL  

HELD JULY 10, 2018 
 

A  Meeting and Work Session of Hopewell City Council, was held Tuesday, July 10 2018, at 6:30 
p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward 7 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward 4 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward 1 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Councilor, Ward 2 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward 3 
     Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward 5 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward 6 
 
     John Altman, City Manager 
     Charles Dane. Assistant City Manager 
     Stefan Calos, Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
     Frazelle Hampton, Assistant City Clerk 
      
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:33 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
Motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded Vice Mayor Gore, to go into Closed Meeting 
for (1) discussion, consideration, and interview of specific appointees of city council (city attorney, 
BZA); (2) consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining 
to actual or probable litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely 
affect the negotiating or litigating posture of city council (water renewal, public works, police, 
zoning); and (3) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto 
and regarding specific legal matters (EDA, general registrar) requiring the provision of legal advice 
by such counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1), (7), and (8), respectively. 
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
   
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 



July 10, 2018 
Regular Meeting and Work Session 

 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council did not come out of Closed Meeting. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak requested a roll call as follows: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - present 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent (not on dais) 
    Mayor Shornak   - present 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
    Councilor Holloway  - present 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
 
 
AMEND/ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Motion was made by Councilor Denton and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey to amend the 
agenda to remove Item R-3 (Request for emergency appropriation of $120,000 for repair of Library 
Street), and to adopt the agenda as amended.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
At 7:24 p.m. Council returned to the dais, but announced that they would not be coming out of closed 
session. 
 
WORK SESSION - HRHA 
 
At 7:25 p.m., the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority came before Council to further 
discuss their request to amend the Hopewell Zoning Map to rezone the property located at Cedar, Cypress 
and Westover Streets in the Highland Park subdivision from Residential, High Density (R-3) and 
Highway Commercial (B-3), to Residential Apartment (R-4).  Mr. Tarvaris McCoy of HRHA presented 
information relating to this request.  There was discussion regarding options for relocation of residents of 
Davisville, as well as the number of vouchers held by HRHA (100), and questions regarding EPA 
approval of the site in question. At the end of the Work Session, Council requested that the HRHA come 
back before them with additional information at a later date. 
  



July 10, 2018 
Regular Meeting and Work Session 

 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the regular meeting at 8:09 p.m., and requested a roll call as follows: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - present 
    Councilor Pelham  - present 
    Mayor Shornak   - present 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
    Councilor Holloway  - present 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
  
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA 
 
 Mayor Shornak called the meeting to order, and thanked all for attending.  The prayer was led by 
Chaplain Belinda Todd of John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
of the United States of America led by Councilor Denton.  
  
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 Councilor Denton moved to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion was seconded by Vice 
Mayor Gore.  
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
 Thurman Collier of the City of Refuge gave a presentation to Council outlining their program. He 
noted that the COR had an article in the Richmond Times Dispatch. Mr. Collier recognized the efforts and 
assistance of Rick Newman, the Commonwealth Attorney, John Keohane, the Chief of Police, and 
Councilor Brenda Pelham. He stated that COR was working on attaining their 501(c)(3) designation. 
Jennifer Baker, the Director of Operations for COR also spoke, as did the two graduates of the program 
 
 Denise Lahman and Jim Ellis from the Performance Management Group (PMG) of Virginia 
Commonwealth University L. Douglas Wilder School of Government and Public Affairs presented on a 
proposed Efficiency and Technology Review: Helping Improve City Hall Operations and Services to the 
Public. Councilors Zevgolis, Gore and Pelham spoke in support of the Review. Mayor Shornak asked that 
the City Manager be included as he deals with City employees.  
 

Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement stating that she is a 
VCU graduate, and that PMG conducted team building with the Department of Veteran Affairs, with 
whom she works.  Mayor Shornak submitted a Transactional Disclosure statement stating that her 
daughter works for the City of Hopewell.  



July 10, 2018 
Regular Meeting and Work Session 

 
Consent Agenda 
 

C-1 Minutes:   
C-2 Pending List:   
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Both attached 
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   
C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: August 14, 2018 – Alley vacation off of Bluefield Street; Street 

vacation portion of Western Street 
C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: BZA – August 15, 2017, October 19, 2017; December 

11, 2017;  
C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: City of Refuge presentation; Technology and 

Efficiency Review presentation 
C-10 Additional Announcements:  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
PH-1 A public hearing was held to receive and consider citizen comments regarding a Conditional Use 
Permit to build a single family home at 2308 Lee Street.  Tevya Griffin, Director of Department of 
Development gave a presentation to Council and the public regarding the request. After discussion, 
motion was made by Councilor Denton and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis to approve the requested 
conditional use permit with the conditions set forth by the Planning Commission. Upon the roll call, the 
vote resulted:  
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - pass (yes per Council rules) 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
Motion passed 6-1 
 
PH-2 A public hearing was held to receive and consider citizen comments regarding a request from Kathy 
Diradour for an amendment to the Hopewell Zoning Map to rezone a property located at 905 W 
Broadway from Limited Commercial (B-2) to Residential, Low Density (R-1).  Ms. Griffin presented this 
request and the background information. After discussion, Councilor Luman-Bailey moved to approve the 
rezoning, which motion was seconded by Councilor Pelham. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted:  
 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - no 
    Mayor Shornak   - no 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - no 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - no 
Motion failed 6-1 
 



July 10, 2018 
Regular Meeting and Work Session 

 
Councilor Pelham moved to amend the agenda to move items R-1 and R-2 to before PH-3, which motion 
was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore.  No vote was taken pending discussion. Upon discussion, Councilor 
Denton made a substitute motion to move Communications from Citizens, and items R-2, R-1 to be heard 
prior to PH-3, in the order: Communications from Citizens, R-2 then R-1. The motion was seconded by 
Mayor Shornak. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS: 
 
Evelyn Bailey, a Ward 5 resident spoke to council regarding the City sewer system. She noted that the 
system seems to have a lot of problems with flooding, in her area particularly. She gave Council pictures 
of the flooding, after which Mayor Shornak asked Johnnie Butler, the City Engineer if he could look at 
the property, which he said he would do. Ms. Bailey provided her address (506 Miles Avenue). Vice 
Mayor Gore called a point of order regarding Council speaking with citizens during the Communications 
from Citizens portion of the agenda. Mr. Calos read from the rules that communication could only go 
through the Mayor. The Vice Mayor asked if she could ask the City Manager a question related to Ms. 
Bailey’s issue and the Mayor agreed that she could do so. Vice Mayor Gore then asked Mr. Altman about 
flooding in other areas, including Kippax, and asked that Council receive an update about stormwater and 
sewer flooding issues in other neighborhoods.  
 
Peter Eliades signed up to speak, but was not present.  David Walker also signed up to speak but was also 
not present. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-2   Systems Management Allocation Resource Transportation (SMART) Scale Funding - VDOT 
– Johnnie Butler, the City Engineer, presented. Mr. Butler said he really appreciated Council re-aligning 
the agenda to accommodate this item early as it was very important. He then explained the various 
projects that the SMART Scale Funding could assist the City with, and the need for Council’s timely 
approval. Councilor Pelham made a motion that was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore to resolve to approve 
the VDOT SMART Scale Program and to authorize the City Manager to sign all necessary documents. 
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 



July 10, 2018 
Regular Meeting and Work Session 

 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
R-1 National League of Cities Service Line Warranty Program Presentation by Ashley 
 Shiwarski, Senior Manager of Utility Service Partners, Inc. - Ms. Shiwarski presented 
information to Council related to the NLC Service Line Warranty Program. There was discussion, including 
a question as to the term of the program. Vice Mayor Gore moved to resolve to approve Hopewell’s 
including in the NLC utility service line warranty program, and to authorize the City Manager to sign all 
necessary documents. The motion was seconded by Councilor Pelham. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
Councilor Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement stating that she is a member of the 
NLC. Vice Mayor Gore submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement stating that she is a member of 
the board of NLC. 
 
It being close to 10:30 p.m., Councilor Pelham made a motion to end the meeting at 10:30 p.m. Upon 
request by Councilor Luman-Bailey, Councilor Pelham amended her motion to end the meeting at 10:30 
p.m. or as long thereafter as may be necessary to hear the fire marshal. Mr. Altman noted that the public 
hearing for HRHA had already been advertised and should be heard. Mr. Calos opined that Councilor 
Pelham had actually made a motion to adjourn, and that the motion needed to be altered to reflect her 
actual intent. Councilor Pelham’s motion failed for lack of a second. 
 
Discussion continued regarding the proper way to phrase the motion. Mayor Shornak expressed that she 
believed it was wrong and alienating to the HRHA to not finish PH-3. Vice Mayor Gore and Councilor 
Pelham called points of order. Mr. Calos asked for clarification of the point of order. Councilor Pelham 
said that her point of order was due to the Mayor’s inability to read her mind and that the Mayor should 
stop being unprofessional. Vice Mayor Gore’s point of order was to ask how Council could waiver the 
rules to extend the meeting for a limited purpose. Mr. Calos explained that she would just word the 
motion accordingly as a motion to extend. Councilor Zevgolis made a motion to extend the meeting past 
10:30 p.m. for the limited purpose of opening PH-3, hearing R-4, and to move item PH-3 to the August 
14, 2018 agenda. Vice Mayor Gore seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - no 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 



July 10, 2018 
Regular Meeting and Work Session 

 
 
Motion passed 6-1 
 
 
PH-3 A public hearing was held to receive and consider citizen comments regarding a request from 
Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority request to amend the Hopewell Zoning Map to rezone 
property located at Cedar, Cypress and Westover Streets in the Highland Park subdivision from 
Residential, High Density (R-3) and Highway Commercial (B-3) to Residential Apartment (R-4).  Marcia 
Lowe asked what effect the HRHA zoning request would have on single family homes on Cypress. Both 
Ms. Griffin and Mr. Altman advised Ms. Lowe that none of the adjacent properties would be affected by 
the rezoning.  
 
R-4   Request to Amend Section 15-20, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the City Code – Fire 
Marshall Heather Marks came before Council seeking to amend the Fire Code to include information 
inadvertently left out of the previous ordinance. Councilor Denton made a motion to approve the 
proposed revisions to City Code Sec. 15-20. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted.  
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
Motion passed 7-0 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

At 10:45 p.m. Council responded to the question pursuant to Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were 
only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (II) identified in 
the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
Results: 7-0 
 
Councilor Denton made the motion to adjourn, which was seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey. The 
vote was unanimous to adjourn.  
 
       
       /s/ Jackie M. Shornak    
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 



July 10, 2018 
Regular Meeting and Work Session 

 
 
/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington   
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk        



 
Special Meeting 

Joint Meeting with the Hopewell School Board 
July 31, 2018 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL  

JOINT MEETING WITH THE HOPEWELL SCHOOL BOARD HELD JULY 31, 2018 
 

A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Tuesday, July 31, 2018, at 6:30 p.m. 
at Patrick Copeland Elementary School in the Library, at 400 Westhill Drive, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
City Council 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward 7 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward 4 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward 2 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward 3 
     Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward 5 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward 6 
 
     John Altman, City Manager 
     Charles Dane. Assistant City Manager 
     Stefan Calos, Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
     Frazelle Hampton, Deputy City Clerk 
 
  ABSENT:  Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward 1 
 
School Board 
  PRESENT:  Nelson G. Cuffey 
     Linda E. Hyslop 
     Wesley Joyner 
     Christopher Reber 
 
     Dr. Melody Hackney, Superintendent 
 
  ABSENT:  Shirl Jefferson 
 
  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:36 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - absent 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 
 



 
Special Meeting 

Joint Meeting with the Hopewell School Board 
July 31, 2018 

 
JOINT MEETING WITH HOPEWELL SCHOOL BOARD 
 
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA 
 
 Mayor Shornak called the meeting to order, and thanked all for attending.  The prayer was led by 
Chris Reber of the School Board, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America led by Mayor Shornak.  
  
 Dr. Melody Hackney, Superintendent of Hopewell Public Schools, introduced the agenda and 
explained that the School Board was seeking some sort of guidance or action from Council on the 
first two items, and the other items were items that needed to be discussed. 
 
 The first item on the agenda was a Security Upgrade for the schools.  Dr. Hackney turned the 
program over to Mr. Greg Cuffey, a member of the School Board. Mr. Cuffey presented information 
on the need for additional security, particularly in the high school. He noted that the School Board 
had looked at other municipalities to see if Hopewell’s standard of security was average, which it 
was not. Dr. Hackney then gave a PowerPoint presentation detailing the stages of the project and 
explaining how much money would be requested of the City ($570,000). Council requested a follow 
up “town hall” meeting at the high school auditorium to gather more information and to include 
public input.  
 
At 7:33 p.m. the meeting was halted so that all present could eat dinner.  At 8:03 p.m. Mayor 
Shornak restarted the meeting.  She asked that the audience hold their questions until the end of the 
meeting.  
 
 The next item on the agenda was the Balanced Calendar.  Sr. Hackney introduced Chris 
Reber and had him speak to Council regarding the Balanced Calendar.  Mr. Reber noted that the 
School Board had received a $60,000 grant to enable them to do a study as to the efficacy of the 
Balanced Calendar in Hopewell schools. They are now in the second year of that study. He further 
noted that, right now, the State is heavily seeking schools to pilot this program and are offering to 
fund it at $300,000 a year for three years.  After the third year, each municipality would have to pay 
for the program. He stated that he believed the School Board could actually do the program for less 
than the $300,000 price tag established by the State.  Dr. Hackney gave a PowerPoint presentation to 
provide more information. She stated that the ultimate goal of the presentation was for the School 
Board to get a “blessing” or conceptual approval of the plan. 
 
 Councilor Zevgolis made a motion to amend the agenda to allow Council to make a motion. 
The motion was seconded by Councilor Pelham. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
  



 
Special Meeting 

Joint Meeting with the Hopewell School Board 
July 31, 2018 

 
 Councilor Zevgolis then made a motion to allow the School Board to take the next step in 
moving toward a Balanced Calendar, and to report back to Council regarding same. His motion was 
seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
 Linda Hyslop came forward to discuss the Early College Academy. She introduced Peggy 
Westcott who is a Coordinator for the program. Ms. Hyslop said that the program includes a 4-year 
program for high school students, and enables them to get an Associate’s Degree at the same time as 
they are obtaining their high school diploma. She stated that in 2019, Hopewell High School will 
have 20 students graduating and participating in this program. 
 
 Ms. Westcott discussed the cost analysis for the program. She said that John Tyler worked 
with the schools on this program. The program originally cost $8.50 per student per credit hour. That 
cost has now increased to $50 per credit hour, per student. The School has the funds in the budget for 
this year and next, but may be problematic thereafter. 
 
 Dr. Hackney skipped the Teacher Recruitment Incentive due to the lateness of the hour. She 
said that item could be revisited at a later date.  She moved on to Taskforce Development.  She asked 
March Altman, the City Manager to put forth their communications regarding reinstating the Schools 
Construction Committee.  Mr. Altman spoke of the School Construction Committee and the purpose 
it served. He said that he thought it would be helpful to both Council and the School Board to 
resurrect that committee.  He said he would put that on the August 14, 2018 agenda for discussion by 
Council. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 9:27 p.m., Councilor Zevgolis made a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Holloway. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Special Meeting 

Joint Meeting with the Hopewell School Board 
July 31, 2018 

 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
Councilor Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement stating that she was an employee 
of the Hopewell Public Schools system. 
 
       /s/ Jackie M. Shornak    
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington   
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



 

PERSONNEL 
CHANGE 
REPORT 



DATE:  August 7, 2018 

TO:  The Honorable City Council 

FROM:  Michelle Ingram, Human Resources Specialist  

SUBJECT: Personnel Change Report – July 2018 

 

 

ADDITIONS (Regular FT and PT positions only) 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
BIRDSALL, JAMES WATER RENEWAL WWT OPER TRAINEE 07/18/2018 
BOND III, JERRY WATER RENEWAL WWT OPER TRAINEE 07/30/2018 

 

SEPARATIONS 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
BURROW, ROBIN RECREATION P/T SENIOR ASST 07/09/2018 
COLEMAN, JAMES WATER RENEWAL WW MAINT MECH 07/01/2018 

EBANKS, SHANELLE CITY MANAGER YOUTH 
COORDINATOR 07/06/2018 

GRANDSTAFF, JEANIE WATER RENEWAL DIRECTOR  07/01/2018 
GRIMM, ROLAND POLICE POLICE OFFICER 07/01/2018 

HENDERSON, QUINNEL RECREATION P/T CUST SVC AGNT 07/27/2018 
JOHNSON, STEPHANIE COMM ATTY  SR ADMIN ASST  07/31/2018 

LOWERY, ASHLEY RECREATION P/T LIFEGUARD 07/24/2018 
LUPACCHINO, JOSEPH RECREATION P/T LIFEGUARD 07/23/2018 

MARTIN, ANTHONY POLICE POLICE OFFICER 07/26/2018 
RADCLIFF, KYLE RECREATION P/T LIFEGUARD 07/23/2018 
RIGNEY, JANET RECREATION P/T SPEC EVNTS ASST 07/25/2018 

SHAPIRO, CHRISTOPHER POLICE POLICE OFFICER 07/19/2018 
SUYES, DOUG POLICE POLICE OFFICER 07/01/2018 

VADEN, TIMOTHY FIRE FIREFIGHTER 07/28/2018 
 
 
 
 
CC: March Altman, City Manager    Concetta Manker, IT Director 

Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager  Jay Rezin, IT 
 Jennifer Sears, Interim HR Director  Carol Scarbrough, Parks & Rec  
 Dave Harless, Risk/Safety Coordinator  Kim Hunter, Payroll 
 Debbie Pershing, Senior Executive Assistant     

Michael Terry, Finance Director    
 Dipo Muritala, Assistant Finance Director   

 
  



 

FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

 























PUBLIC HEARING 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

September 11, 2018:
 

Conditional Use Permt 
     City Point

     Mesa

Rezoning Request

     Western Street



  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 















































1 

Hopewell Community Policy & Management Team 
 

Minutes of the Meeting 
 

April 16, 2018 

Present: Sheila Bailey, Hopewell Schools; Diana Barnes, District 19; Janice Denton, City 
Council; Joan Gosier, City Treasurer; Woody Harris, Court Services; Raymond Spicer, Social 
Services Director; and Anthony Zevgolis, City Council. 

 

Others Present:  Wanda Brown, CSA Manager 

The meeting was called to order at 2:08 p.m.  

I. Approval of Minutes – A motion was made by Ray Spicer and seconded by Woody 
Harris to approve the minutes of March 26, 2018, as amended.  The motion was passed 
unanimously.  

Ray Spicer stated that Thomas Brothers has been a magic pill for the Department of 
Social Services because before they were doing so much manually.  He said that CSA 
would be the next logical step, but it is not as smooth sailing as suggested.  Mr. Spicer 
stated that they can assist CSA with the technical piece for the transition.  He asked 
Wanda Brown if CSA will have the staff capacity to maintain the program.  Ms. Brown 
stated that she is not under any false assumptions that social services will help.   She 
fully understands that she will be responsible the same as other CSA offices.  She also 
stated that Joan Gosier, the financial agent, has already offered someone in her office to 
assist CSA. 

II. Financial Report – Wanda Brown presented the March 2018 financial report that
provided a brief snapshot of expenditures made during the month.  The March
expenditures accounted for 7.9% ($138,290.74) of total CSA expenditures.   Ms. Brown
explained that the next report reflects the year-to-date totals.  The report shows all the
charges that have been paid and encumbered by CSA and reflects that 63.5% of the
$2,962,619.38 FY18 CSA budget has been spent to date.  Ms. Brown stated that Joan
Gosier will be making some modifications to the financial report and will begin
presenting the report at the next meeting.

Ms. Brown reported that only $12,000 of the $34,000 allocated for wrap around funds
have been spent to date.   She will not request additional funding because the
remaining $22,000 will not be spent in the next three months.



2 
 

 
CMPT Minutes 
April 16, 2018 
 
 

Joan Gosier asked members if it would benefit them to receive the number of 
families/students and amounts covered by these line items.    Members agreed that this 
would be very helpful.   Diana Barnes stated that end of year totals spent per student for 
IV-E, CSA, Medicaid and other funding sources would also be very helpful.  

 
III. Old Business 

A. Policy and Procedures – Diana Barnes stated that she had started working on 
the procedures last week and found that a lot of stuff was missing that is 
needed.  Mrs. Barnes doesn’t feel that this will be a hard task and that the 
checklist is a good guideline.  However, it will take a long time, quite a lot of 
work, but she is willing to tackle it.   Ms. Brown agreed to work on the basic 
policy section and modify it.  Diana Barnes asked Ms. Brown to send members 
copies of the last policy and procedures, along with the attachments.   Ms. 
Brown agreed to send all members an entire policy and procedures, but will 
have to recreate the attachments due to the manual and attachments being 
removed from the CSA office after the last audit and not returned.   

 
 

 

IV. New Business 
A.  Council Appointments to CPMT – Janice Denton asked if members were 

affected when City Council sent out letters appointing the department/agency 
heads to CPMT.   Diana Barnes stated that some people were thrown for a loop 
when the letters were sent out.  She said that department/agency heads 
wanted to know if they had to attend the meetings or if they could send a 
designee.  Sheila Bailey stated that appointments previously were made by City 
Council.  She said that now Dr. Hackney, the Superintendent, is the member 
and she is her designee.  Janice Denton wanted to know if the process had 
changed, and who was actually on the committee because she never received 
a letter.  Wanda Brown stated that the letters were shared with her but she 
did not compile a list.   Mrs. Denton asked Ms. Brown to provide them with a 
list of actual members on the committee because not knowing is causing 
confusion.  Diana Barnes stated that there should be 8 mandated members on 
the committee.  Currently, the committee is down two members – Parent and 
Private Provider Representatives.  Anthony Zevgolis wanted to know if new 
members were supposed to be sworn in.  Janice Denton replied that they will 
find out once a list of who is actually on the committee is provided to them.   

 
V. Closed Meeting – Chairman Barnes declared at 2:47 p.m. to enter into a Closed 

Meeting, pursuant to §2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia for the purpose of discussing 
or considering child-specific purchase order requests, which is authorized by §2.2-
3711(A)(4) of the Code of Virginia.    

 
Chairman Barnes declared at 3:41 p.m. to reconvene the open session. 

 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
 

 
 
CMPT Minutes 
April 16, 2018 

 
 

 
Certification of Closed Meeting 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia, the Community Policy and 
Management Team certify that, to the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public  
business matters  lawfully exempt from  open meeting  requirements  under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act, and (ii) only such business matters as were 
identified in the motion by which the Closed Meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed, or considered.   Sheila Bailey, Diana Barnes, Wanda Brown, Janice Denton, 
Joan Gosier, Woody Harris,  Ray Spicer, and Anthony Zevgolis responding “yes.” 

 
 
 
 

A.     Approval of Purchase Order Requests 
A motion was made by Sheila Bailey, and seconded by Woody Harris approving 
and authorizing all expenditures discussed in closed session in the amount of 
$140,777.75.  The motion was passed unanimously by CPMT voting members.   
 

 
      

VI. Items of Interest  
Sheila Bailey announced her retirement from the Hopewell City Public School System as 
of June 30, 2018.  She stated that she has 41 years in education and has thoroughly 
enjoyed this work.  Dr. Bailey said that she intends to stay involved and is not yet ready 
for a rocking chair. 
 
Diana Barnes said that she will miss Dr. Bailey and her wealth of knowledge of the 
students and families we serve. 
 
Wanda Brown informed members that she will be out of the country in September.  She 
suggested changing the September CPMT meeting from September 17th to September 
21st.  

  
VII. The meeting was adjourned at 3:51 p.m.   

 
      The next meeting is scheduled for May 21, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.   
 
 
 
Motion to approve the April 16, 2018 Minutes:  Sheila Bailey   
Seconded by: Joan Gosier 
All members voting “yes” 
 
 
 



1 

Hopewell Community Policy & Management Team 
 

Minutes of the Meeting 
 

May 31, 2018 

Present: Sheila Bailey, Hopewell Schools; Diana Barnes, District 19; Janice Denton, City 
Council; Joan Gosier, Fiscal Agent; and Anthony Zevgolis, City Council 

Absent:  Woodrow Harris, Court Services; Shamia Majette, Health Department; and 
Raymond Spicer, Social Services Director  
Others Present:  Wanda Brown, CSA Manager; Joe Bizzell, Treasurer’s Office; and Christene 
Teasley, CSA Senior Administrative Assistant  

The meeting was called to order at 2:15 p.m.  

I. Approval of Minutes – A motion was made by Sheila Bailey and seconded by Joan 
Gosier to approve the April 16, 2018 Minutes, as submitted.  The motion was passed 
unanimously.  

II. Financial Report – Joan Gosier reviewed the CSA Fiscal Agent Discussion Document and
stated that the process is a team operation with purchasing/procurement, finance,
FAPT, CPMT and fiscal agent all working together to make the process seamless.  Ms.
Gosier stated that, for reporting purposes, the last day of the month will be the cut-off
date for financial reports provided at CPMT meetings.  She provided members with July
1, 2017-May 22, 2018 program income and expenses, and total program expenses for
selected vendors.   Joan Gosier reported that the City’s Finance Director is including in
the budget a position for a full-time CSA fiscal agent.  She stated that, in her opinion, a
fiscal agent is not a full-time, $70,000 position.

Janice Denton asked if all vendors were approved by the State.  Diana Barnes replied
that they are state approved and must have a current contract on file with CSA.

The May 2018 financial report was presented by Wanda Brown and it provided a brief
snapshot of expenditures made during the month, which accounted for 9.4%
($382,897.06) of total CSA expenditures.   The second report reviewed by Ms. Brown
indicated year-to-date charges that had been paid and encumbered by CSA.   She
explained that these figures reflected 79.6% (2,351,008.60) of the amount spent to date
of the $2,962,619.38 FY18 CSA budget.   Ms. Brown reported that a request for
supplemental funding had not been necessary thus far; however, the month of June is
usually the catch-up month for paying late invoices, so a supplemental funding request
to help cover these costs will probably be made.  She stated that the State allows CSA
until September 30th @ 11:59 p.m. to enter and pay FY2018 invoices.



2 
 

    
 

 
 

CMPT Minutes 
May 31, 2018 
 
 
 

III. Old Business 
A. Policy and Procedures – Wanda Brown stated that she was about two weeks 

behind on her section of the policy due to a family emergency.  She explained 
that she would be working on basic stuff and should have her section 
completed in the next two weeks.  Diana Barnes reported that she plans to do 
the majority of work on her section during the summer.   She stated that the 
ethics materials she received from Woody Harris had been forwarded to 
members for review.  Ms. Brown also added that she was able to locate the old 
attachments.    

 
 

IV. New Business 
A. Thomas Brothers – Wanda Brown explained that the Department of Social   

Services has been utilizing the Thomas Brothers system.  She stated that it 
would cost CSA $2,000, but there would be no extra cost for CSA if she was 
allowed to use social service’s purchase order system.   Ms. Brown emphasized 
how helpful and easier it would be for CSA.   Diana Barnes asked Ms. Brown to 
contact Thomas Brothers to see if $2,000 is a yearly cost and if there are 
additional costs for support maintenance.  Anthony Zevgolis recommended 
making a request to the City Manager and Ray Spicer regarding utilization of the 
Thomas Brothers system by CSA.  

 
V. Closed Meeting – Chairman Barnes declared at 3:05 p.m. to enter into a Closed 

Meeting, pursuant to §2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia for the purpose of discussing 
or considering child-specific purchase order requests, which is authorized by §2.2-
3711(A)(4) of the Code of Virginia.    

 
Chairman Barnes declared at 3:35 p.m. to reconvene the open session. 

 
Certification of Closed Meeting 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia, the Community Policy and 
Management Team certify that, to the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public  
business matters  lawfully exempt from  open meeting  requirements  under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act, and (ii) only such business matters as were 
identified in the motion by which the Closed Meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed, or considered.   Sheila Bailey, Diana Barnes, Joe Bizzell, Wanda Brown, Janice 
Denton, and Anthony Zevgolis responding “yes.” 

 
 
 
 

A.     Approval of Purchase Order Requests 
A motion was made by Sheila Bailey, and seconded by Anthony Zevgolis 
approving and authorizing all expenditures discussed in closed session in the 
amount of $117,150.30.  The motion was passed unanimously by CPMT voting 
members.   
 
 
 



3 

CMPT Minutes 
May 31, 2018 

VI. Items of Interest
Janice Denton asked if CPMT is now fully staff.  Diana Barnes stated that the committee
still needs a private provider representative and a parent representative.  Joe Bizzell
wanted to know if any steps have been made to fill these positions.  Janice Denton
asked if members wanted her to speak with the City Clerk to find out how and where
these positions should be advertised.  Diana Barnes asked Mrs. Denton to check with
the City Clerk and present her findings at the next meeting.

Janice Denton and Anthony Zevgolis informed members that they had provided to
Council for approval the name of the person to serve on CSA as the private provider
representative.  Mr. Zevgolis stated that Mrs. Denton made the motion and he
seconded the motion to appoint the private provider representative.   However, Council
still wanted to interview the individual.  Mr. Zevgolis and Mrs. Denton were not sure
why this step was necessary.   Diana Barnes stated that members of Council are
welcomed to come to any CSA meeting.   Ms. Barnes said that if any Council member
feels that he/she can do a better job and wanted to serve as the Chair, she would hand
it over to them.

VII. A motion was made by Anthony Zevgolis and seconded by Joe Bizzell to adjourn the
meeting at 3:52 p.m.

   The next meeting is scheduled for June 18, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.  

Approval of the May 31, 2018 Minutes  
Motion by:  Anthony Zevgolis    
Seconded by: Joseph Bizzell 
All members voting “yes” 



1 

DRAFT 

Hopewell Community Policy & Management Team 
 

Minutes of the Meeting 
 

June 18, 2018 

Present: Sheila Bailey, Hopewell Schools; Diana Barnes, District 19; Joseph Bizzell, 
Treasurer’s Office; Janice Denton, City Council; Shamia Majette, Health Department; 
Raymond Spicer, Social Services Director; Woodrow Harris, Court Services; and Anthony 
Zevgolis, City Council 

Absent: Joan Gosier, Fiscal Agent   
Others Present:  Wanda Brown, CSA Manager; Christene Teasley, CSA Senior Administrative 
Assistant; and Susan Traylor, Social Services   

The meeting was called to order at 2:05 p.m.  

I. Approval of Minutes – A motion was made by Anthony Zevgolis and seconded by 
Joseph Bizzell to approve the May 31, 2018 Minutes, as submitted.  The motion was 
passed unanimously.  

II. Old Business
A. Thomas Brothers – Ray Spicer stated that Hopewell DSS has implemented 

Thomas Brothers for processing everyday services.  He said that prior to having 
Thomas Brothers it was a long, laborious task.   Now, they can pull off all costs 
with a touch of a button.  Mr. Spicer said that Thomas Brothers has not yet 
been fully implemented into the Munis system.  Susan Traylor stated that 
Thomas Brothers needs GL account numbers to put into their system.  Wanda 
Brown stated that CSA continues to get cited for processing purchase orders 
after services have been provided.  She emphasized that being able to utilize 
Thomas Brothers would eliminate this problem.   Ms. Brown said that many DSS 
employees have told her how great it is using Thomas Brothers.  She reported 
that it would cost $2,000 to purchase the software if CSA cannot utilize DSS’s 
system.   Anthony Zevogolis asked if there was a problem with DSS allowing CSA 
to use their software.  Ray Spicer and Susan Traylor responded that non DSS 
employees are not allowed to access the state social service system; therefore, 
CSA will need a stand-alone program.  Ms. Traylor added that $2,000 is a one-
time licensing fee along with a yearly maintenance fee of $750.   Mr. Zevgolis 
stated that perhaps Mr. March and representatives from the IT department 
should have attended this meeting.  Mr. Bizzell informed members that this is 



2 
 

 
 
 
CMPT Minutes 
June 18, 2018 
 
 
 

being discussed and is high on the list of priorities.  He said that Michael Terry 
and Mr. March are also working on this.  Joseph Bizzell stated that Joan Gosier 
wanted him to ask who would be responsible for the implementation of 
Thomas Brothers from an IT standpoint.  Mr. Bizzell asked Ray Spicer to forward 
to him and Joan Gosier information regarding the interfacing between Thomas 
Brothers and Munis. 
 
Mr. Zevogolis informed members that City Council had interviewed the service 
provider representative.  The individual was approved by a vote of 7-0 and has 
been appointed to serve as a CPMT member. 
 

A. Policy and Procedures – Wanda Brown stated that that her section of the policy 
manual should be completed in about a week.  She explained that changes are 
being made regarding the submission of FAPT paperwork.  She reported that 
the paperwork must be submitted to the CSA office a week before the actual 
meeting.    

 
III. Financial Report - The May 2018 financial report was presented by Wanda Brown and 

provided a brief snapshot of expenditures made during the month, which accounted for 
9.0% ($300,698.99) of total CSA expenditures.   Ms. Brown stated that the second report 
indicated 2018 YTD charges that have been paid and encumbered by CSA.   She 
explained that these figures reflect 89.0% (2,627,418.12) of the amount spent to date of 
the $2,962,619.38 FY18 CSA budget.  Ms. Brown also included the 2017 YTD financials in 
case members wanted to compare 2017 and 2018 spending cost.  She reported that a 
supplemental request would probably be made because 95% of June invoices for school 
and ESY cost are in.     
 
Joseph Bizzell reported that $2,351,008.60 of the $2,962,619.30 amount budgeted has 
been spent for program expenses as of May 31st.  The amount remaining is $461,706.88. 
Mr. Bizzell reviewed the June, 2018 CSA Report by Client.   Mr. Zevgolis asked if there 
was a certain length of time a client receives services.  Wanda Brown responded that it 
depends on the person and circumstances.  The client may have needed only one 
service or may have just come into the system. 

 
 

 
 

IV. New Business 
A. Foster Care/CSA Federal Budget Change – Woody Harris stated that the 

information provided indicated the big changes coming for the foster care 
system, which will have an impact on CSA.  He said that this notice was received 
from the Virginia Municipal League with additional information to follow.   

 
 
 
 



3 

CMPT Minutes 
June 18, 2018 

V. Closed Meeting – Chairman Barnes declared at 2:34 p.m. to enter into a Closed 
Meeting, pursuant to §2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia for the purpose of discussing 
or considering child-specific purchase order requests, which is authorized by §2.2-
3711(A)(4) of the Code of Virginia.    

Chairman Barnes declared at 3:05 p.m. to reconvene the open session. 

Certification of Closed Meeting 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia, the Community Policy and 
Management Team certify that, to the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public 
business matters  lawfully exempt from  open meeting  requirements  under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act, and (ii) only such business matters as were 
identified in the motion by which the Closed Meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed, or considered.   Sheila Bailey, Diana Barnes, Joseph Bizzell, Wanda Brown, 
Janice Denton, Woody Harris, Shamia Majette, Ray Spicer, and Anthony Zevgolis 
responding “yes.” 

A.     Approval of Purchase Order Requests 
A motion was made by Anthony Zevgolis, and seconded by Sheila Bailey 
approving and authorizing all expenditures discussed in closed session in the 
amount of $31,724.87.  The motion was passed unanimously by CPMT voting 
members.   

VI. Items of Interest
Wanda Brown had members sign the CPMT Confidentiality Statements.  Shamia Majette
informed members that she recently got married and will be moving to Alaska soon.
Diana Barnes stated that Jennifer Tunstall, Executive Director, will attend the July 16th

CPMT meeting with her so she can see what CPMT is all about.  Wanda Brown stated
that CSA is planning a regional meet-and-greet with UMFS on August 29th.  She is
inviting Dr. Hart, city council members, city manager, recreation and parks, and others
to attend.

VII. A motion was made by Anthony Zevgolis and seconded by Shamia Majette to adjourn
the meeting at 3:15 p.m.

   The next meeting is scheduled for July 16, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.  

Approval of the June 18, 2018 Minutes  
Motion by:      
Seconded by:  
All members voting  



















































PUBLIC 
HEARINGS 

 



























































 

 

 

 

  

Proposed property to rezone from R-3 and B-3 to R-4 

 

 

 

 

 

Aerial Map with Landmarks 

Source: Google Maps 



 
  
 COMMUNICATIONS   
     FROM CITIZENS 

 



 
UB-1 

 



Salary Range ($) # of Assistant Registrars
Colonial Heights 29,100 - 49,961 1
Danville 36,186.55 1
Dinwiddie 28,704 0*
Emporia 24,024 2**
Lynchburg 46,342 1
Newport News 65,437 1
Norfolk No Reponse
Petersburg No Reponse
Richmond 44,646 - 73,336 1
Suffolk 38,407 - 60,298 2
Surry 0

NOTE:
* - 1 part-time Program Support Technican
** -  positions are Part-Time

Assistant Registrar - Salary Survey



13.8 28,704             
11.55 24,024             
22.28 46,342             



FY 18 Budget 192,735.57$                           
Less:
Actuals as of 6/19/18 174,472.94
Payroll through end of fiscal year 10,958.05
Available balance 7,304.58$                               

Voter Registrar



Council action form  1-3-17       ___________________________________________________ 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

06-26-18 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 

 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
 None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   General Registrar Request for Appropriation 
 
ISSUE:  The General Registrar has hired an Assistant Registrar at a salary higher than the budgeted salary 
($33,741.56) for that position.  Pursuant to Virginia Code §24.2-112, City Council sets the rate of pay for 
the Assistant Registrar.  The General Registrar is requesting an appropriation of an additional $9,758.44 
for FY18 and FY19 to bring the position salary to $43,500. 
    
RECOMMENDATION:  City Staff recommends City Council take appropriate action.  Should Counicl 
approve the increase, Staff recommends that it  be retroactive to the date of hire  
 
TIMING:    
 
BACKGROUND:    The General Registrar has requested the increase in salary based on the individual’s 
“35 years of experience as a Registrar assistant in Petersburg, Virginia, the benefits and offers provided 
to other employees of this locality and the needs of the Voter Registration Office for the City of Hopewell 
at this time.”  Virginia Code §24.2-112 states “(t)he compensation of any assistant registrar, other than 
those who agree to serve without pay, or any other employee of the general registrar shall be fixed and 
paid the by the local governing body and shall be the equivalent of or exceed the minimum hourly wage 
established by federal law in 29 U.S.C. §206 (a) (1), as amended.”  The current salary of $33,341.56 
($16.22/hr), which exceeds the Federal minimum hourly wage ($7.25/hr), was “fixed” by City Council 
during the FY18 budget process.  There is a projected FY18 fund balance in the General Registrar’s Office 
full-time salary line item of $7,304.58 available.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The requested action will increase the reduce fund balance by $9,758.44.   
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Memorandum dated May 29, 2018; Salary Survey of Assistant 
Registrars; Salary History of Registrar’s Office; Available Fund Balance Worksheet for General 
Registrar’s Office 
 
STAFF:    Yolanda W. Stokes, General Registrar  

 







Code of Virginia
Title 24.2. Elections
Chapter 1. General Provisions and Administration
    
§ 24.2-112. Assistants to general registrars; employees
  
The electoral board shall determine the number and set the term for assistant registrars;
however, their terms shall not extend beyond the term set by law of the incumbent general
registrar. The general registrar shall establish the duties of assistant registrars, appoint assistant
registrars, and have authority to remove any assistant registrar who fails to discharge the duties
of his office.
  
In Russell County, there shall be at least one full-time assistant registrar who shall serve in the
office of the general registrar.
  
In any county or city whose population is over 15,500, there shall be at least one assistant
registrar who shall serve at least one day each week in the office of the general registrar.
  
Any county or city whose population is 15,500 or less shall have at least one substitute registrar
who is able to take over the duties of the general registrar in an emergency and who shall assist
the general registrar when he requests.
  
All assistant registrars shall have the same limitations and qualifications and fulfill the same
requirements as the general registrar except that (i) an assistant registrar may be an officer of
election and (ii) an assistant registrar shall be a qualified voter of the Commonwealth but is not
required to be a qualified voter of the county or city in which he serves as registrar. Candidates
who are residents in the county or city for which they seek appointment may be given preference
in hiring. Localities may mutually agree to share an assistant registrar among two or more
localities. Assistant registrars who agree to serve without pay shall be supervised and trained by
the general registrar.
  
All other employees shall be employed by the general registrar. The general registrar may hire
additional temporary employees on a part-time basis as needed.
  
The compensation of any assistant registrar, other than those who agree to serve without pay, or
any other employee of the general registrar shall be fixed and paid by the local governing body
and shall be the equivalent of or exceed the minimum hourly wage established by federal law in
29 U.S.C. § 206 (a) (1), as amended.
  
The general registrar shall not appoint to the office of paid assistant registrar his spouse or any
person, or the spouse of any person, who is his parent, grandparent, sibling, child, or grandchild.
  
Code 1950, § 24-58; 1970, c. 462, § 24.1-45; 1973, c. 30; 1974, c. 428; 1975, c. 515; 1982, c. 650;
1983, c. 470; 1984, c. 480; 1986, c. 558, § 24.1-45.3; 1993, c. 641; 1999, c. 115;2001, cc. 637, 638,
642, 643;2003, c. 232;2007, c. 813.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this section
may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters whose
provisions have expired.
  

1 5/18/2018

http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0115
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0115
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0637
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0638
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0642
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0643
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0643
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP0232
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP0232
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0813


DATE HOURLY RATE ANNUAL SALARY

Assistant Registrar 7/1/2010 $12.96 $26,956.80

Assistant Registrar 12/14/2011 $12.09 $25,147.20
7/1/2012 $13.08 $27,206.40
8/1/2013 $13.47 $28,017.60
7/1/2014 $13.74 $28,579.20
7/1/2015 $13.74 $28,579.20
7/1/2016 $14.23 $29,598.40
7/1/2017 $15.90 $33,079.90
8/1/2017 $16.22 $33,741.55

General Registrar 7/1/2010 $21.81 $45,364.80
7/1/2011 $21.81 $45,364.80
7/1/2012 $23.59 $49,067.20
8/1/2013 $24.30 $50,544.00
7/1/2014 $24.79 $51,563.20
7/1/2015 $24.79 $51,563.20
7/1/2016 $25.28 $52,582.40
7/1/2017 $25.53 $53,108.22
8/1/2017 $26.04 $54,170.48

NOTE:  There was a change in personnel in the Assistant Registrar position between 7/1/2010 and 12/14/2011

Assistant and General Registrar Salaries
2010 - 2017



Salary Range ($) # of Assistant Registrars
Colonial Heights 29,100 - 49,961 1
Danville 36,186.55 1
Dinwiddie 28,704 0*
Emporia 24,024 2**
Lynchburg 46,342 1
Newport News 65,437 1
Norfolk No Reponse
Petersburg No Reponse
Richmond 44,646 - 73,336 1
Suffolk 38,407 - 60,298 2
Surry 0

NOTE:
* - 1 part-time Program Support Technican
** -  positions are Part-Time

Assistant Registrar - Salary Survey



Population information of surrounding localities- 2016 

 

Colonial Heights-17,772  

Danville-43,310 

Petersburg- 31,882 

Emporia- 5,305 

Prince George- 37,845 

Dinwiddie-28,144 

Newport News- 181,825 

Lynchburg-80,212 

Norfolk- 245,115 

Richmond-223,170 

Suffolk-89,273  

Surry- 6,544 

   
  

  
    

 



DATE HOURLY RATE ANNUAL SALARY

Assistant Registrar 7/1/2010 $12.96 $26,956.80

Assistant Registrar 12/14/2011 $12.09 $25,147.20
7/1/2012 $13.08 $27,206.40
8/1/2013 $13.47 $28,017.60
7/1/2014 $13.74 $28,579.20
7/1/2015 $13.74 $28,579.20
7/1/2016 $14.23 $29,598.40
7/1/2017 $15.90 $33,079.90
8/1/2017 $16.22 $33,741.55

General Registrar 7/1/2010 $21.81 $45,364.80
7/1/2011 $21.81 $45,364.80
7/1/2012 $23.59 $49,067.20
8/1/2013 $24.30 $50,544.00
7/1/2014 $24.79 $51,563.20
7/1/2015 $24.79 $51,563.20
7/1/2016 $25.28 $52,582.40
7/1/2017 $25.53 $53,108.22
8/1/2017 $26.04 $54,170.48

NOTE:  There was a change in personnel in the Assistant Registrar position between 7/1/2010 and 12/14/2011

Assistant and General Registrar Salaries
2010 - 2017



 
UB-2 

 



 
UB-3 

 



 

 

 

 

 

UB-4 
 



 

City Council 
Ward Improvement Fund Policy 
Effective July 10, 2018 
 

Purpose: 

The City Council Ward Improvement Fund is designed to assist Hopewell residents, businesses’, 

community groups and city partners that are providing a contribution to moving Hopewell 

forward.  

 

Authority: 

Each member of City Council shall maintain oversight for his or her respective Ward 

Improvement Fund.  

The City Clerk shall be the sole manager of each Ward Improvement Fund. The City Clerk will 

document and keep records for each Ward Improvement expenditures and will serve as the 

primary administrator to facilitate all fund requests. 

 

Budget Appropriation: 

Ward Improvement Fund is an annual appropriation within City Council’s Operating Budget. 

The City of Hopewell’s finance system shall listed individual ward allocations and serve as the 

primary tool to manage fund revenues and expenditures. All funds within the Ward 

Improvement Fund are only available for that respective fiscal year.  

Council shall have the authority to provide additional appropriations to the Ward Improvement 

Fund by way of budget amendments. Additional appropriations shall be divided equally 

between all seven wards within the City of Hopewell.  

Transfers from other City Council Operating Budget line items is prohibited.   

 

Guidelines 

City Council is only legally authorized to expend District Improvement Funds for requests that 
fall into one of the following five categories: 
 
1. Public improvements to public land. 
2. Purchase of property and equipment which the City will own. 
3. Public events or programs sponsored by the City or by organizations to which the City has 
specific statutory authority to make donations. 
4. Public school programs which the School Board has specific authority to support, or requests 
from Virginia public universities which the City is specifically authorized by law to fund. 
5. Donations to organizations to which the City is specifically authorized to make donations by 
state statute. 
 



 

City Council 
Ward Improvement Fund Policy 
Effective July 10, 2018 
 

Requests: 

Any member of the public, city staff or member of the Governing Body may submit a Ward 

Improvement Fund grant request.   

City Council may contribute to the same cause or events as other members of City Council. Joint 

funding requests to multiple members of City Council on one application is permissible.  

 

Procedure: 

1) Eligible applicants submit the Ward Improvement Fund Application to the City Clerk’s 

Office: 300 North Main Street. Hopewell, VA 23860.  

2) The City Clerk logs and processes the Ward Improvement Fund Application. Processing 

must be completed within three to five business days. Processing includes assessing 

each application to ensure it meets eligibility criteria and determining if the Ward 

Improvement Fund has the required funding available. 

3) In writing, the City Clerk forwards the submitted Ward Improvement Fund application, 

fund Actual Balance, and recommendation to both the respective City Councilor(s) and 

City Attorney for review. The City Attorney provides a legal review to determine if the 

request does violate city, state or federal law.  

4) In writing, the respective City Councilor(s) provide the City Clerk with an 1) Approval 2) 

Denial for the respective Ward Improvement Fund Application within three to five 

business days.  

5) The City Clerk drafts the responsive letter to the applicant to provide notification of the 

request approval or denial. The letter must be drafted using the set template on file for 

each member of City Council, unless requested at time of decision to use otherwise.  

6) If the request is approved, the City Clerk will process the necessary Purchase Orders and 

other required documentation. The City Clerk will notify the respective member of City 

Council once the check is released to the applicant. If applicative, the City Clerk will 

notify the respective member of City Council when the check is ready for pick up for 

direct presentation to the applicant. 

Members of City Council may contribute to the same cause or events as other members of City 

Council. Applicants are allowed to request a joint funding request from multiple members of 

City Council on one application.  



 

 

 LEGITIMATE CATEGORIES OF FUNDING WITH DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT FUNDS 

 

 

Although the Board receives many requests for donations that seem worthy of funding, the 

Board is only legally authorized to expend District Improvement Funds for requests that fall into one 

of the following five categories: 

1. Public improvements to public land. 

 

2. Purchase of property and equipment which the County will own. 

 

3. Public events or programs sponsored by the County or by organizations to which the 

County has specific statutory authority to make donations. 

 

4. Public school programs which the School Board has specific authority to support, or 

requests from Virginia public universities which the County is specifically authorized 

by law to fund. 

 

5. Donations to organizations to which the County is specifically authorized to make 

donations by state statute. 

 



1 

 City of Hopewell, Virginia 
Ward Improvement Fund 

Funding Request Application 
FY19 Application 

Applicant Information 

Full Name:    Date:  
 Last First M.I.   
 

Address:   
 Street Address Apartment/Unit # 

 

    
 City State ZIP Code 

 

Phone:  Email  
 

Ward:___ _____ Date Funds Needed:  Funding Amount: $ 
 

Have you ever worked for this city? 
YES 

 
NO 

      If yes, when?  ___________________________________  
 
Do you have a relative that has worked for 
the city? 

YES 
 

NO 
 If yes, when?  

 

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? 
YES 

 
NO 

  
 

If yes, explain:  

  Organization Information 

Although the City Council receives many requests for donations that seem worthy of funding, the City Councilor(s) are 
only legally authorized to expend District Improvement Funds for requests that fall into one of the following five 
categories: 
 
1. Public improvements to public land.  
2. Purchase of property and equipment which the City will own.  
3. Public events or programs sponsored by the City or by organizations to which the City has specific statutory authority 
to make donations.  
4. Public school programs which the School Board has specific authority to support, or requests from Virginia public 
universities which the City is specifically authorized by law to fund.  
5. Donations to organizations to which the City is specifically authorized to make donations by state statute.  

: 
 Organization:      Phone:  

Address:      Mobile:   
 

City:  State:  Zip Code:  
 
Email:   W9 Attached: Yes:   No:    

 
Website:   Facebook:  

Twitter:  
 
 Instagram:  



2 

                                                                  Event Information    

 

Event Name:  Date:  

Address:  Supervisor:  
 

City:  State:  Zip Code:  
 

Event Purpose::  
 

      

     
 
 

    
 

  

    
 

  

    
 

  
 
 
If approved, would you like the check presented at the event? 

YES          
 

NO 
  

    

Special Notes: 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Disclaimer and Signature 
I certify that my answers are true and complete to the best of my knowledge.  

I understand that false or misleading information in my application or interview may result in my release. 

Signature:  Date:  
 
Written Name    

    

Clerk – Internal Only 
Date Received:  PO #:  

Date Processed:     

Application Status:    Approved:  Denied:    
 



 
REGULAR 
BUSINESS 

 



 
R-1 

 
 



Council Action Form  2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

July 10, 2018 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

 Civic Engagement 
 Culture & Recreation  
 Economic Development 
 Education 
 Housing 
 Safe & Healthy Environment  
 None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

 Consent Agenda    
 Public Hearing          
 Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
 Unfinished Business            
 Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
 Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
 Take Appropriate Action  
 Receive & File (no motion required) 
 Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
 Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
 Set a Public Hearing       
 Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Riverside Regional Jail Authority Alternate 
Member 
 
ISSUE:  Appoint Mr. Charles E. Dane, Assistant City Manager, as the alternate member 
to attend meetings in John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager, absence. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Staff recommends approval of the resolution 
 
TIMING:    The request is not time sensitive 
 
BACKGROUND:   The Board of the Riverside Regional Jail Authority consists of the sheriff from 
each member jurisdiction and one additional member from the jurisdiction appointed by the governing 
body for a four year term, plus alternates for the sheriff or member appointed by the governing body.  
City Council appointed John M. Altman, Jr, City Manager, to the Authority Board at its February 13, 
2018 meeting.  Mr. Jerry Whitaker, former Director of Finance, is currently listed as Mr. Altman’s 
alternate.  Mr. Whitaker is no longer employed by the City.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   None 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  Resolution 
 
STAFF:    March Altman, City Manager 
   

 



RESOLUTION 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 726 of the 1990 Acts of Assembly created the Riverside Regional Jail 
Authority (the “Authority”), which legislation was amended by Chapter 228 of the 1993 Acts of Assembly, 
Chapter 642 of the 1999 Acts of Assembly and Chapter 229 of the 2014 Acts of Assembly; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Board of the Authority consists of the sheriff from each member jurisdiction and 
one additional member from the jurisdiction appointed by the governing body for a four year term, plus 
alternates for the sheriff or member appointed by the governing body; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hopewell appointed John M. Altman, Jr., to represent 
the jurisdiction on February 13, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board has requested an alternate for the appointed member be appointed to attend 
and vote in Mr. Altman’s absence; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hopewell that Mr. 
Charles E. Dane is appointed as an alternate to the Board for the same term as Mr. Altman. 
 

 

Adopted this 14th day of August 2018. 

 

 



 
R-2 

 
 



AuCouncil Action Form 2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

August 14, 
2018 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Request to establish two (2) full-time 
permanent Benefit Programs Specialist positions with the Hopewell Department of 
Social Services to help manage higher caseloads resulting from the 2018 General 
Assembly approval of Medicaid Expansion. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Approve. 
 
TIMING:    Immediate approval is requested to afford time to recruit, hire, and 
train new staff prior to November 2018 when the State will open the Medicaid 
program for new eligible applicants to apply for coverage. 
 
BACKGROUND:   Governor Northam signed Medicaid Expansion into law on June 
7, 2018.  Virginia joins 32 other states and the District of Columbia in expanding 
Medicaid coverage.  The measure is scheduled to take effect January 1, 2019 with 
applications accepted starting in November 2018. 
 
Virginia’s existing Medicaid program is one of the least generous in the nation.  To 
be eligible, a disabled individual can make no more than $9,700 a year.  The cutoff 
for a family of three is $6,900.  Able-bodied, childless adults are not eligible, no 
matter of their income.  When implemented, coverage under Medicaid Expansion 
will be accessible to persons with income up to 138 percent of the federal poverty 
level, which is $16,750 for an individual; $28,700 for an adult in a household of 
three. 
 
Under the current program guidelines, eligibility is determined based on income 
and categorical requirements (aged, blind, disabled, expectant mothers, households 

 



AuCouncil Action Form 2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

August 14, 
2018 

with minor children.)  However under expanded coverage, eligibility will solely be 
based on income. 
 
Currently there are 7,799 Hopewell residents receiving Medicaid coverage.  Based 
on state data, there are approximately 1,000 additional City residents eligible under 
the new expansion program guidelines - a 12.8% increase.  
 
The General Assembly’s FY 2019-20 biennium budget includes administrative 
funding to assist with the increased volume of Medicaid applications.  The State 
budget allocates funding for the equivalent of approximately 300 new local benefit 
programs specialist positions.  The State realizing that localities have already 
approved their local FY 2019 budgets is providing this additional allocation without 
any local matching requirement for the current Fiscal Year.  Hopewell City’s FY 
2019 allocation is $93,150.  This amount will fully fund the 2 requested Benefit 
Programs Specialist positions (salaries and fringe benefits).   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The two (2) requested positions are fully funded by the State 
for the remainder of FY2018-19; thereafter the locality will be subject to a 15.5% 
local match to supplement the funding of the positions.  The State has added the 
additional amount of $93,150 to the Department’s base budget.  Heretofore, the City 
has agreed to approve and provide local matching funds for any increases in 
funding from the State in support of the services and activities provided through 
Hopewell Social Services. 
 
Services provided under Medicaid coverage not only improve and enhance the 
health and wellbeing of City residents but also help to fuel the local economy. 
During the State’s prior Fiscal Year (2017), $48.8 million in Medicaid benefits were 
provided to eligible Hopewell residents for physician care, hospital and emergency 
services; prescription drugs; laboratory and X-ray services; maternity and newborn 
care; home health services; behavioral health services rehabilitative services; family 
planning; transportation to appointments when not otherwise available; medical 
equipment and supplies; and preventive care, including annual wellness exams, 
immunizations, smoking cessation and nutritional counseling. 
 
 
 



AuCouncil Action Form 2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

August 14, 
2018 

These requested positions are needed to help ensure that Hopewell Social Services is 
timely and accurately processing the higher caseloads resulting from the approval of 
Medicaid Expansion, in conformity with State guidelines. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  State Additional Allocations Memo for Local Staff 
and Operations     
 
STAFF:   Ray Spicer, Director Social Services 
     
 



801 East Main Street · Richmond VA · 23219-2901 
http://www.dss.virginia.gov · 804-726-7000 · TDD 800-828-1120 

 
 

MEMO 
 

To:  Local Department of Social Services 
 
From:  Michael Gump, Chief Financial Officer 
 Ida Witherspoon, Budget Director 
 
Re: Additional Allocations for Local Staff and Operations 
 
Date: June 8, 2018 
 
On May 30, the Virginia General Assembly passed a FY 2019-2020 biennium budget that 
included Medicaid expansion.  Additional administrative funding to assist with the 
increased volume of Medicaid applications was provided for the equivalent of 
approximately 300 new local benefit programs specialist positions.  With local match, the 
total to be allocated is approximately $21.5M.   
 
Local allocations were determined using three equal factors: 
 

 Distribution of current funding versus current workload for benefit programs 
specialists 

 Projected increase in workload due to Medicaid expansion (minimum allocation 
of $45,000) 

 Historical staff and operations (budget lines 855 and 858) spending  
 
Hopewell City’s FY 2019 share of the total to be allocated is $93,150.   
 
In FY 2019, Medicaid expansion funding will be available in budget line 849, Local 
Staff and Operations – No Local Match, when LASER opens for June on July 18, 
2018.  As stated in the guidance memo dated May 2, 2018, this funding will not require 
a local match for FY 2019 only.   
 
These funds are to be used for any activity related to Medicaid expansion such as hiring 
staff, procuring office space and furniture, training, etc. that would otherwise be 
reimbursable under budget line 855.  This will allow localities time to increase staffing 
where needed prior to the implementation of Medicaid expansion and to request funding 

http://www.dss.virginia.gov/


801 East Main Street · Richmond VA · 23219-2901 
http://www.dss.virginia.gov · 804-726-7000 · TDD 800-828-1120 

for local match from their local boards for FY 2020.  Medicaid expansion funding will 
become part of base budget line 855 allocations beginning in FY 2020 and will require a 
15.5 percent local match. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Budget Analysts Kim Conner at 
kim.conner@dss.virginia.gov or 804-726-7262 or LaTonya Williams at 
latonya.williams@dss.virginia.gov or 804-726-7260.

http://www.dss.virginia.gov/
mailto:kim.conner@dss.virginia.gov
mailto:latonya.williams@dss.virginia.gov


 

 

 

 

 

 

R-3 
 

 

 

 



Council action form  1-3-17        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-9-
2016 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 

 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 

 Safe & Healthy Environment  
 None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      

 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 
 Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Authority to enter into contracts for refuse and recycling services 
 
ISSUE:  The 5 year contracts for refuse and recycling will expire June 30, 2019.  Inorder to assure a 
smooth transition of services on July 1, 2019 the contracts for services need to be renewed or rebid this 
summer.    
    
RECOMMENDATION: City Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Manager and CVWMA 
to negotiate and award contracts for refuse and recycling collection and disposal services at a rate that will 
not impact the residential collection rate more than $2.54 per household per month.   
 
TIMING:   This approval needs to be made as soon as possible to provide the maximum negotiating time 
for staff and allow for any start-up concerns by the contractors.  
 
BACKGROUND:   In 2013, the City of Hopewell authorized CVWMA to enter into a contract with CFS 
for refuse collection and disposal, and another contract with County Waste for recycling collection and 
material reuse.  These 5-year contracts are going to expire July 1, 2019.  CVWMA has received proposals 
from these contractors to renew the respective contracts for another 5-year period (2019-2024).  Both of 
the proposals involve rate increases.  CVWMA has asked the City if it would like to renew the existing 
contracts or advertise for new contracts.  The best rates are epected to be with the current providers and 
staff is expecting to execute contract renewals with both providers. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The total estimated cost increase for both programs is $290,000 a year (FY 19/20). 
The new rate will be held at the same rate for the next 5 years.  
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   
 
STAFF:    Monique Robertson, Office Services Manager and CVWMA Board Member 

Edward Watson, Director of Public Works  

   

 



See table below: 

Summary of New Contract Proposals for Refuse and Recycling Collections 

CVWMA has received contract renewal proposals from both Container First Services (CFS) for trash 
collection and County Waste for recycling services for the City of Hopewell.  Both proposals include 
significant rate increases that will go into effect July 1, 2019.  The estimated total cost increase for both 
programs is $290,000 a year (FY 19/20).  The estimated impact on residential rates is an increase from 
$20.65 to $23.19 ($2.54 or 12.3% increase) per month.  This new cost will hold constant for the life of 
the 5-year contract.  

Domestic Trash (CFS) 

CFS has proposed a new rate of $8.10 per household (HH) per month.  This is a $1.10 increase from the 
current rate of $7.00/HH (15.7%).  In addition, CFS has proposed 7% increase for new carts, 8% increase 
for hauling from the convenience center, a 24% increase for disposal of convenience center containers, 
and a 7% increase for Front-End Loader services.  Based on the 8,672 households in the program, and 
the average volumes collected at the convenience center, the overall resulting increase in trash services 
would be approximately 16% or roughly $140,000 per year for refuse collection. 

Pricing information: 
• A $7.00/HH rate has been in place since the start of the contract executed July 2014
• Prior to July 2014, Hopewell was paying $12.17 per HH per month
• The bids received for refuse collection in 2014 RFP were $10.00/HH - County Waste; $9.50/HH- 
Republic Services (incumbent); $9.25/HH- Virginia Waste Services; $9.62/HH - Waste Management and 
$7.00/HH - CFS 
• CFS owns and operates the closest refuse disposal facility: Tri-Cities Regional Landfill, located in the
City of Petersburg.  Therefore, transportation costs for other potential proposers will likely be higher. 
• Pricing per HH in recent procurements in the area have all increased by 20% or greater. A recent
procurement in the City of Colonial Heights resulted in a 51% increase in per HH cost ($2.53/HH/month). 

Recycling 

County Waste has proposed a new rate of $2.98 per HH per month. This is an increase of $1.44/HH per 
month from the current rate of $1.54/HH per month (93.5% increase).  The overall resulting increase in 
recycling services would be approximately 94% or roughly $150,000 per year for recycling. 

Pricing information: 
• The current commodity market pricing for mixed paper products in May 2018 is zero. Historically
this number has averaged $66 per ton. This has forced recycling collection companies to increase their 
pricing dramatically as 60% of the recycling stream is paper products. 
• The market for mixed paper should recover in the next two to three years. China has been the major
importer of mixed paper, in the last few months the Chinese Government has effectively stopped 
accepting US recycling materials. As a result, there is an extreme oversupply of post-consumer mixed 
paper generated by the US and other countries.. 
• Colonial Heights and Ashland are currently paying $2.49 per HH, and the City of Richmond are paying
$2.93 HH.  However, these costs are expected to go up because of the markets mentioned above. 



  See table below: 

Residential Refuse Collection and Disposal 

Locality    Old Rate          New Rate             Percent Change 

Colonial Heights             $5.00    $7.53 51% (increase) 

Petersburg         $8.13      $8.94 10% (increase) 

Ashland    $10.16        $8.18 20% (decrease) 

Chesterfield Tax Relief $12.00 $8.40 30% (decrease) 

Hopewell    $7.00   $8.10 16% (increase) 

• Hopewell cost from Republic prior to 2014 was $12.17/ HH 

 

 

Residential Recycling Collection and Reuse 

Locality    Old Rate          New Rate             Percent Change 

Colonial Heights             $ 2.49   $2.55 2.4%  (increase) 

Petersburg         $2.22 $2.33 5%     (increase) 

Ashland    $2.49   $2.55  2.4%  (increase) 

Chesterfield Tax Relief NA NA NA 

Hopewell    $1.54   $2.98 94%    (increase) 

 

 



Sec. 6-31.1. - Control of dangerous or vicious dogs.  

(a)  As used in this section, dangerous dog means a canine or canine crossbreed that has bitten, 
attacked, or inflicted injury on a person or companion animal that is a dog or cat, or killed a 
companion animal that is a dog or cat; however, when a dog attacks or bites a companion animal 
that is a dog or cat, the attacking or biting dog shall not be deemed dangerous if (i) no serious 
physical injury as determined by a licensed veterinarian has occurred to the dog or cat as a result of 
the attack or bite, (ii) if both animals are owned by the same person, (iii) if such attack occurs on the 
property of the attacking or biting dog's owner or custodian, or (iv) for other good cause as 
determined by the court. No dog shall be found to be a dangerous dog as a result of biting, attacking 
or inflicting injury on a dog or cat while engaged with an owner or custodian as part of lawful hunting 
or participating in an organized, lawful dog handling event. No dog that has bitten attacked, or 
inflicted injury on a person shall be found to be a dangerous dog if the court determines, based on 
the totality of the evidence before it, that the dog is not dangerous or a threat to the community.  

Vicious dog means a canine or canine crossbreed that has (i) killed a person; (ii) inflicted serious 
injury to a person, including multiple bites, serious disfigurement, serious impairment of health, or serious 
impairment of a bodily function; or (iii) continued to exhibit the behavior that resulted in a previous finding 
by a court or, on or before July 1, 2006, by an animal control officer that it is a dangerous dog, provided 
that its owner has been given notice of that finding.  

(b)  Any law enforcement officer or animal control officer who has reason to believe that a canine or 
canine crossbreed within the city is a dangerous dog or vicious dog shall apply to a magistrate of the 
city for the issuance of a summons requiring the owner or custodian, if known, to appear before the 
general district court at a specified time. The summons shall advise the owner of the nature of the 
proceeding and the matters at issue. If a law enforcement officer successfully makes an application 
for the issuance of a summons, he shall contact the city animal control officer and inform him of the 
location of the dog and the relevant facts pertaining to his belief that the dog is dangerous or vicious. 
The animal control officer shall confine the animal until such time as evidence shall be heard and a 
verdict rendered. If the animal control officer determines that the owner or custodian can confine the 
animal in a manner that protects the public safety, he may permit the owner or custodian to confine 
the animal until such time as evidence shall be heard and a verdict rendered. The court, through its 
contempt powers, may compel the owner, custodian or harborer of the animal to produce the animal. 
If, after hearing the evidence, the court finds that the animal is a dangerous dog, the court shall order 
the animal's owner to comply with the provisions of this section. If, after hearing the evidence, the 
court finds that the animal is a vicious dog, the court shall order the animal euthanized in accordance 
with the provisions of Code of Virginia, § 3.2-6562. The procedure for appeal and trial shall be the 
same as provided by law for misdemeanors. Trial by jury shall be as provided in Code of Virginia, 
Article 4 (§ 19.2-260 et seq.) of Chapter 15 of Title 19.2. The Commonwealth shall be required to 
prove its case beyond a reasonable doubt.  

(c)  No canine or canine crossbreed shall be found to be a dangerous dog or vicious dog solely because 
it is a particular breed, nor is the ownership of a particular breed of canine or canine crossbreed 
prohibited. No animal shall be found to be a dangerous dog or vicious dog if the threat, injury or 
damage was sustained by a person who was (i) committing, at the time, a crime upon the premises 
occupied by the animal's owner or custodian, (ii) committing, at the time, a willful trespass upon the 
premises occupied by the animal's owner or custodian or (iii) provoking, tormenting, or physically 
abusing the animal, or can be shown to have repeatedly provoked, tormented, abused, or assaulted 
the animal at other times. No police dog that was engaged in the performance of its duties as such at 
the time of the acts complained of shall be found to be a dangerous dog or a vicious dog. No animal 
which, at the time of the acts complained of, was responding to pain or injury, or was protecting itself, 
its kennel, its offspring, a person, or its owner's or custodian's property, shall be found to be a 
dangerous dog or a vicious dog.  

(d)  If the owner of an animal found to be a dangerous dog is a minor, the custodial parent or legal 
guardian shall be responsible for complying with all requirements of this section. 



(e)  G. The owner of any animal found to be a dangerous dog shall, within 30 days of such finding, obtain a 
dangerous dog registration certificate from the local animal control officer or treasurer for a fee of $150, in 
addition to other fees that may be authorized by law. The local animal control officer or treasurer shall also 
provide the owner with a uniformly designed tag that identifies the animal as a dangerous dog. The owner shall 
affix the tag to the animal's collar and ensure that the animal wears the collar and tag at all times. By January 
31 of each year, until such time as the dangerous dog is deceased, all certificates obtained pursuant to this 
subsection shall be updated and renewed for a fee of $85 and in the same manner as the initial certificate was 
obtained. The animal control officer shall post registration information on the Virginia Dangerous Dog 
Registry. 

The owner of any animal found to be a dangerous dog shall, within ten (10) days of such finding, 
obtain a dangerous dog registration certificate from the treasurer for a fee of fifty dollars ($50.00) in 
addition to other fees that may be authorized by law. The treasurer shall also provide the owner with 
a uniformly designed tag that identifies the animal as a dangerous dog. The owner shall affix the tag 
to the animal's collar and ensure that the animal wears the collar and tag at all times. All certificates 
obtained pursuant to this subsection shall be renewed annually for the same fee and in the same 
manner as the initial certificate was obtained. The animal control officer shall provide a copy of the 
dangerous dog registration certificate and verification of compliance to the state veterinarian.  

(f)  All dangerous dog registration certificates or renewal thereof required to be obtained under this 
section shall only be issued to persons eighteen (18) years of age or older who present satisfactory 
evidence (i) of the animal's current rabies vaccination; (ii) that the animal is and will be confined in a 
proper enclosure or is and will be confined inside the owner's residence or is and will be muzzled 
and confined in the owner's fenced-in yard until the proper enclosure is constructed; (iii) that the 
animal has been neutered or spayed; and (iv) that the owner has liability insurance coverage, to the 
value of at least one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) per incident, that covers animal bites, 
or a bond in surety, in lieu of liability insurance, to the value of at least one hundred thousand dollars 
($100,000.00). In addition, owners who apply for certificates or renewals thereof under this section 
shall not be issued a certificate or renewal thereof unless they present satisfactory evidence that (i) 
the residence housing the dog is and will continue to be posted with clearly visible signs warning 
both minors and adults of the presence of a dangerous dog on the property and (ii) the animal has 
been permanently identified by means of a tattoo on the inside thigh or by electronic implantation.  

(g)  While on the property of its owner, an animal found to be a dangerous dog shall be confined indoors 
or in a securely enclosed and locked structure of sufficient height and design to prevent its escape 
and to prevent direct contact with or entry by minors, adults, or other animals. The structure shall be 
designed to provide the animal with shelter from the elements of nature. When off its owner's 
property, an animal found to be a dangerous dog shall be kept on a leash and muzzled in such a 
manner as not to cause injury to the animal or interfere with the animal's vision or respiration, but so 
as to prevent it from biting a person or another animal.  

(h)  The owner of any dog found to be dangerous shall register the animal with the Commonwealth of 
Virginia Dangerous Dog Registry, as established under Code of Virginia, § 3.2-6542, within forty-five 
(45) days of such a finding by a court of competent jurisdiction. The owner shall also cause the city 
animal control officer to be promptly notified of (i) the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of 
all owners; (ii) all of the means necessary to locate the owner and the dog at any time; (iii) any 
complaints or incidents of attack by the dog upon any person or cat or dog; (iv) any claims made or 
lawsuits brought as a result of any attack; (v) tattoo or chip identification information or both; (vi) 
proof of insurance or surety bond; and (vii) the death of the dog.  

(i)  After an animal has been found to be a dangerous dog, the animal's owner shall immediately, upon 
learning of same, cause the local animal control authority to be notified if the animal (i) is loose or 
unconfined; or (ii) bites a person or attacks another animal; or (iii) is sold, given away, or dies. Any 
owner of a dangerous dog who relocates to a new address shall, within ten (10) days of relocating, 
provide written notice to the appropriate local animal control authority for the old address from which 
the animal has moved and the new address to which the animal has been moved.  

(j)  Any owner or custodian of a canine or canine crossbreed or other animal is guilty of a:  

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"



(1)  Class 2 misdemeanor if the canine or canine crossbreed previously declared a dangerous dog 
pursuant to this section, when such declaration arose out of a separate and distinct incident, 
attacks and injures or kills a cat or dog that is a companion animal belonging to another person.  

(2)  Class 1 misdemeanor if the canine or canine crossbreed previously declared a dangerous dog 
pursuant to this section, when such declaration arose out of a separate and distinct incident, 
bites a human being or attacks a human being causing bodily injury.  

(3)  Class 6 felony if any owner or custodian whose willful act or omission in the care, control, or 
containment of a canine, canine crossbreed, or other animal is so gross, wanton, and culpable 
as to show a reckless disregard for human life, and is the proximate cause of such dog or other 
animal attacking and causing serious bodily injury to any person.  

The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to any animal that, at the time of the acts 
complained of, was responding to pain or injury, or was protecting itself, its kennel, its offspring, 
a person, or its owner's or custodian's property, or when the animal is a police dog that is 
engaged in the performance of its duties at the time of the attack.  

(k)  The owner of any animal that has been found to be a dangerous dog who willfully fails to comply 
with the requirements of this section shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor. 

(l)  All fees collected pursuant to this section, less the costs incurred by the animal control authority in 
producing and distributing the certificates and tags required by this section, shall be paid into a 
special dedicated fund in the treasury of the city for the purpose of paying the expenses of any 
training course required under Code of Virginia, § 3.2-6556.  

(Ord. No. 2009-20, 10-13-09) 

State Law reference— Control of dangerous dogs, Code of Virginia, § 3.2-6540. 



Whereas, the governing body of each county or city shall impose by ordinance a license tax 
on the ownership of dogs within its jurisdiction. The governing body of any locality that has 
adopted an ordinance pursuant to subsection B of § 3.2-6524 of the Code of Virginia shall 
impose by ordinance a license tax on the ownership of cats within its jurisdiction.  
 
Whereas, the governing body may establish different rates of taxation for ownership of 
female dogs, male dogs, spayed or neutered dogs, female cats, male cats, and spayed or 
neutered cats. The tax for each dog or cat shall not be more than $10 for each year or $50 
for a lifetime license issued pursuant to subsection B of § 3.2-6530 of the Code of Virginia. 
If the dog or cat has been spayed, the tax shall not exceed the tax provided for a male dog 
or cat.  
 
Whereas, no license tax shall be levied on any dog that is trained and serves as a guide 
dog for a blind person, that is trained and serves as a hearing dog for a deaf or hearing-
impaired person, or that is trained and serves as a service dog for a mobility-impaired or 
otherwise disabled person. As used in this section, "hearing dog," "mobility-impaired 
person," "otherwise disabled person," and "service dog" have the same meanings. 
 
Be it resolved, that the City of Hopewell animal license fees for spayed or neutered dogs or 
cats shall be $3.00 per year and for non-spayed or non-neutered unfixed dogs or cats shall 
be $8.00 per year. Animal owners shall also have the option of purchasing a lifetime animal 
license for their cat or dog at a rate of $10.00 per year if the animal has been spayed or 
neutered or $20.00 per year for non-spayed or non-neutered dogs or cats. 



Code of Virginia
Title 3.2. Agriculture, Animal Care, and Food
Chapter 65. Comprehensive Animal Care

§ 3.2-6528. Amount of license tax
The governing body of each county or city shall impose by ordinance a license tax on the
ownership of dogs within its jurisdiction. The governing body of any locality that has adopted an
ordinance pursuant to subsection B of § 3.2-6524 shall impose by ordinance a license tax on the
ownership of cats within its jurisdiction. The governing body may establish different rates of
taxation for ownership of female dogs, male dogs, spayed or neutered dogs, female cats, male
cats, and spayed or neutered cats. The tax for each dog or cat shall not be more than $10 for each
year or $50 for a lifetime license issued pursuant to subsection B of § 3.2-6530. If the dog or cat
has been spayed, the tax shall not exceed the tax provided for a male dog or cat. Any ordinance
may provide for an annual license tax for kennels of 10, 20, 30, 40, or 50 dogs or cats not to
exceed $50 for any one such block of kennels.

No license tax shall be levied on any dog that is trained and serves as a guide dog for a blind
person, that is trained and serves as a hearing dog for a deaf or hearing-impaired person, or that
is trained and serves as a service dog for a mobility-impaired or otherwise disabled person.

As used in this section, "hearing dog," "mobility-impaired person," "otherwise disabled person,"
and "service dog" have the same meanings as assigned in § 51.5-40.1.

1984, cc. 248, 492, § 29-213.57; 1986, c. 169; 1987, c. 488, § 3.1-796.87; 1993, c. 817; 1994, c. 108;
2006, c. 836;2008, c. 860;2014, c. 616;2017, cc. 559, 567.

The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this section
may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters whose
provisions have expired.

1 7/13/2017

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/3.2-6524/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/3.2-6530/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/51.5-40.1/
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?941+ful+CHAP0108
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?941+ful+CHAP0108
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0836
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0836
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?081+ful+CHAP0860
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?081+ful+CHAP0860
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0616
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0616
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0559
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0567


 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY 
ATTORNEY 

 

 



1 

HOPEWELL CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

These rules are authorized by the Hopewell Charter, Chapter IV, Section 4 

CONDUCT OF MEETINGS— 
ROLES OF PRESIDING OFFICER, CITY CLERK, AND CITY ATTORNEY 

101. Robert’s Rules of Order; Parliamentarian; Presiding Officer – Where these rules 
are silent, Robert’s Rules of Order prevails (Charter IV.4).  The city attorney is 
parliamentarian, whose ruling, when requested by or through the presiding officer, is 
final and binding, subject only to appeal to and a two-thirds vote of all council members.  
The presiding officer is the council president (mayor) or, in the mayor's absence, the 
vice-president (vice mayor) (Charter IV.5).  If the mayor and vice mayor are absent, the 
temporary chairman (see Rule 103) is the presiding officer. 

[Approved 6.26.18 (this and other rules are to be adopted once all rules are approved)] 



1 
 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.25"

Current . . . 
 
102. Roll Call – The Mayor, or in his absence the Vice-Mayor, shall take the chair at the 

hour appointed for Council to meet and shall immediately call the members to order. 

The roll should then be called by the Clerk who shall enter in the minutes of the meeting 

the names of the members present and absent. In the absence of a quorum at the time 

appointed for a meeting, the members present by a majority vote take a recess or 

recesses and direct the Clerk to procure the attendance of absent members.  A quorum 

exists when a majority of Council is present.  (City Charter, Chapter 4, Section 4(c)).                  

 

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

102. 
 
 
 
 
 

Roll Call; Quorum – The Mayor, or in his absence the Vice-Mayor, shall takepresiding 

officer takes the chair at the hour appointed for Council to meetmeeting hour, and shall 

immediately call the memberscalls council to order. The roll shouldclerk then be called 

bycalls the Clerk who shall enterroll, and enters in the meeting minutes of the meeting 

the names of the memberscouncilors as present andor absent. In the absence of a 

quorum at the time appointed for a meeting, the members present by a majority vote 

take a recess or recesses and direct the Clerk, the clerk attempts to procure the 

attendance of absent memberscouncilors.  A quorum exists when a majority of 

Councilall councilors is present.  (City  (Charter, Chapter  IV.4, Section 4(c)).                  

). 
 

Proposed (clean) . . . 
 

102. 
 
 
 
 
 

Roll Call; Quorum – The presiding officer takes the chair at the appointed meeting 

hour, and immediately calls council to order. The clerk then calls the roll, and enters in 

the meeting minutes the names of the councilors as present or absent. In the absence of a 

quorum, the clerk attempts to procure the attendance of absent councilors.  A quorum 

exists when a majority of all councilors is present (Charter IV.4). 

 
 

Formatted Table

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Tab stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" + 
2.5" +  3"

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Italic, No underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"



 
 

1 
 
 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.25"

Current . . . 
 
103. Temporary Chairman – In case of the absence of the Mayor and Vice Mayor, the 

Clerk shall call the Council to order and call the roll of the members. If a quorum is 

found to be present, Council shall proceed to elect by a majority of those present a 

chairman of the meeting to act until the Mayor or Vice Mayor appears. 

 

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

103. Temporary Chairman – In case of the absence of the Mayormayor and Vice 
Mayorvice mayor, the Clerk shall call the Councilclerk calls council to order, and 
callcalls the roll of the members.. If a quorum is found to be present, Council shall 
proceed to electexists, council elects by a majority vote of those present aone of its 
members to be temporary chairman of the meeting to act until the Mayormayor or Vice 
Mayorvice mayor appears. 
 

Proposed (clean) . . . 
 

103. Temporary Chairman – In the absence of the mayor and vice mayor, the clerk calls 

council to order, and calls the roll. If a quorum exists, council elects by majority vote of 

those present one of its members to be temporary chairman until the mayor or vice 

mayor appears. 

 
 
 

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"



1 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.25"

Current . . . 

104. Appeals from decision of the Chair – The chair shall preserve decorum and decide all 

questions of order subject to appeal to Council. In case of an appeal from a ruling of the 

Chair, the question shall be put: “Shall the decision of the Chair stand as the decision of 

the Council?” If a member transgresses the rules of Council, the Chair shall call him to 

order, in which case, he shall be seated unless permitted to explain.  

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

104. Appeals from decision of the Chair – The chair shall preserve decorum and decide all 

questions of order subject to appeal to Council. In case of an appeal from a ruling of the 

Chair, the question shall be put: “Shall the decision of the Chair stand as the decision of 

the Council?” If a member transgresses the rules of Council, the Chair shall call him to 

order, in which case, he shall be seated unless permitted to explain. 

Appeals – See Rule 101. 

Proposed (clean) . . . 

104. Appeals – See Rule 101. 
Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"



1 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.25"

Current . . . 

105. Voting – All questions shall be stated and put by the Chair. All votes concerning the 

approval of any Ordinance or Resolution shall be by roll call by the Clerk, followed by 

immediate statement of result. All other votes may be taken by “ayes” and “nays,” or by 

roll call, at the discretion of the Chair. It shall not be in order for members to explain 

their vote during the call of the roll. Silence shall be recorded as an affirmative vote. 

Proposed changes (as redlined as of 6/26/18 meeting) . . . 

105. Voting – All questions shall be stated and put by the Chair. All votes concerning the 
approval of any OrdinanceMethods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or 
Resolution shall beresolution are by roll call by the Clerk, followed by immediate 
statement of result..  All other votes may be takenare by “ayes” and “nays,” or by” 
(Charter IV.8), unless the presiding officer requests a roll call, at the discretion of the 
Chair. It shall not be in order for members to explain their vote during the call of the 
roll. Silence shall be recorded as an affirmative vote. 

Proposed changes (redlined per comments at 6/26/18 meeting) . . . 

105. Voting Methods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or resolution are by roll 
call.  All other votes are recorded by “ayes” and “nays” (Charter IV.8), unless the 
presiding officer requests a roll call. No councilor is excused from voting except on 
items that consider the councilor's official conduct, or involve the councilor's financial 
or personal interests (Charter IV.8).  Although one cannot be compelled to vote 
(Robert's Rules), a councilor who abstains or otherwise fails to vote without having been 
excused under this rule or Rule 209 may be disciplined (Charter IV.4; Va. Code § 2.2-
3711). 

Proposed changes (clean) . . . 

105. Voting Methods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or resolution are by roll 
call.  All other votes are recorded by “ayes” and “nays” (Charter IV.8), unless the 
presiding officer requests a roll call. No councilor is excused from voting except on 
items that consider the councilor's official conduct, or involve the councilor's financial 
or personal interests (Charter IV.8).  Although one cannot be compelled to vote 
(Robert's Rules), a councilor who abstains or otherwise fails to vote without having been 
excused under this rule or Rule 209 may be disciplined (Charter IV.4; Va. Code § 2.2-
3711). 

Formatted: Font: Italic, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"



1 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.25"

106. 
Presiding Officer – Leaving Chair -  The presiding officer at a meeting may call any 

other member to take his place in the chair for a single issue and in no instance shall 

substitution extend beyond adjournment. By Presiding Officer shall mean either the 

Mayor, Vice Mayor or Chairman of the meeting. 

 

Current . . . 

 

Presiding Officer – Leaving Chair -  The presiding officer at a meeting may call any 

other member to take his place in the chair for a single issue and in no instance shall 

substitution extend beyond adjournment. By Presiding Officer shall mean either the 

Mayor, Vice Mayor or Chairman of the meeting. 

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

106. Presiding Officer – Leaving Chair - Officer's Designee – The presiding officer at a 

meeting may call any other memberdesignate another councilor to take his place in the 

chairpreside for a single issue and in no instance shall substitution extend beyond 

adjournment. By Presiding Officer shall mean either.  If the mayor is the Mayor, Vice 

Mayor or Chairman ofpresiding officer, the meeting.vice mayor is designated.  If the 

vice mayor is unavailable, the presiding officer may designate any other councilor. 

Proposed (clean) . . . 

106. Presiding Officer's Designee – The presiding officer may designate another councilor to 

preside for a single issue.  If the mayor is the presiding officer, the vice mayor is 

designated.  If the vice mayor is unavailable, the presiding officer may designate any 

other councilor. 

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Hanging:  0.5"



1 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.25"

Current . . . 

204. Method of Voting 

A.  Every member present when a question is put shall vote either “yes” (or “aye”) or “no” 

(or “nay”). No member shall be excused from voting except on matters involving the 

consideration of his official conduct, or where his financial or personal interests are 

involved. (City Charter §8)  Application to be excused from voting must be made before the 

vote is called. The member having briefly stated the reason for his request, the decision 

shall be made without debate in accordance with City Charter and State Law. 

B.  Roll call for voting on motions shall be chronological by ward numbers. At the first 

meeting in July, the roll call shall start with the Councilor from Ward 1 and proceed 

with Councilors through Ward 7. Each Council meeting thereafter, the roll call shall be 

rotated by beginning with the next chronological Ward and continue to rotate 

throughout the fiscal year. (See Minute Book No. 23, Page No. 348). 

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

204. Method of Voting 

C.  Every member present when a questionOrder – No councilor is put shall vote either 

“yes” (or “aye”) or “no” (or “nay”). No member shall be excused from voting except 

on matters involvingitems that consider the consideration of hiscouncilor's official 

conduct, or where hisinvolve the councilor's financial or personal interests are 

involved. (City (Charter §IV.8)  Application to be excused from voting must be made 

before the vote is called. The member having briefly stated the reason for his request, 

the decision shall be made without debate in accordance with City Charter and State 

Law. 

D.  ).  Roll call for voting on motions shall be chronological is by ward numbersnumber. 
At the first meeting in July, the roll call shall startstarts with the Councilor from Ward 1 and 
proceed with Councilorscouncilor, and proceeds numerically, through the Ward 7. Each 
Council councilor.  At each meeting thereafter, the roll call shall beis rotated by beginning 
with the next chronological Ward and continue to rotate throughout2 councilor at the 
second meeting, and so on until each councilor has voted first.  Once all councilors have 
voted first, the fiscal year. (See Minute Book No. 23, Page No. 348).process repeats. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Heading 2, Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or
numbering, Tab stops:  0.5", Left +  0.93", Left



2 
 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.25"

Proposed (clean) . . . 
 

204. Voting Order – Roll call for voting is by ward number. At the first meeting in July, the roll 
call starts with the Ward 1 councilor, and proceeds numerically, through the Ward 7 
councilor.  At each meeting thereafter, the roll call is rotated by beginning with the Ward 2 
councilor at the second meeting, and so on until each councilor has voted first.  Once all 
councilors have voted first, the process repeats.  
 

 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"



1 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.25"

Current . . . 

209. Excuse During Meeting – Any member desiring to be excused while Council is in session 

shall obtain such permission from the presiding officer. 

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

209. Excuse During Meeting – Any member desiring tocouncilor may be excused while Council 

is in session shall obtain suchduring a meeting, with permission fromof the presiding officer. 

Proposed (clean) . . . 

209. Excuse During Meeting – Any councilor may be excused during a meeting, with permission 
of the presiding officer. 

Formatted: Heading 2, Centered, Tab stops:  0.18", Left + 
0.43", Left +  0.68", Left +  0.93", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"



 
REPORTS OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL 
• COMMITTEES 

• INDIVIDUAL REQUEST 
• ANY OTHER COUNCILOR 



ADJOURN 


	Salary Survey - Region.pdf
	Salary Survey - Regional

	Voter Registrar - FY18 Year End Salary Balance.pdf
	Sheet1

	Voter Registrar - Salary Request - 080418.pdf
	CAF - Assistant Registrar Salary - 062618
	Stokes - Deputy Registrar Compensation 5-29-18.ltr
	Code of Virginia 24.2-112 - Assistants to General Registrars
	Voter Registrar's Office Salary History
	Sheet2

	Salary Survey - Region
	Salary Survey - Regional

	Assistant Registrar - Salary Information - 6.12.2018

	Voter Registrar's Office Salary History.pdf
	Sheet2

	ADPDE80.tmp
	Method of Voting
	Method of Voting
	 ).  Roll call for voting on motions shall be chronological is by ward numbersnumber. At the first meeting in July, the roll call shall startstarts with the Councilor from Ward 1 and proceed with Councilorscouncilor, and proceeds numerically, through the Ward 7. Each Council councilor.  At each meeting thereafter, the roll call shall beis rotated by beginning with the next chronological Ward and continue to rotate throughout2 councilor at the second meeting, and so on until each councilor has voted first.  Once all councilors have voted first, the fiscal year. (See Minute Book No. 23, Page No. 348).process repeats. 
	Voting Order – Roll call for voting is by ward number. At the first meeting in July, the roll call starts with the Ward 1 councilor, and proceeds numerically, through the Ward 7 councilor.  At each meeting thereafter, the roll call is rotated by beginning with the Ward 2 councilor at the second meeting, and so on until each councilor has voted first.  Once all councilors have voted first, the process repeats. 

	ADP439A.tmp
	Excuse During Meeting – Any member desiring to be excused while Council is in session shall obtain such permission from the presiding officer. 
	Excuse During Meeting – Any member desiring tocouncilor may be excused while Council is in session shall obtain suchduring a meeting, with permission fromof the presiding officer. 
	Proposed (clean) . . . 
	Excuse During Meeting – Any councilor may be excused during a meeting, with permission of the presiding officer. 


	Full Name: 
	Date: 
	Address: 
	undefined: 
	Phone: 
	Email: 
	Ward: 
	Date Funds Needed: 
	Funding Amount: 
	If yes when: 
	If yes when_2: 
	If yes explain: 
	2 Purchase of property and equipment which the City will own: Off
	to make donations: Off
	universities which the City is specifically authorized by law to fund: Off
	5 Donations to organizations to which the City is specifically authorized to make donations by state statute: Off
	Organization: 
	Address 1: 
	Address 2: 
	Mobile: 
	State: 
	Zip Code: 
	Email_2: 
	Website: 
	Facebook: 
	Twitter: 
	Instagram: 
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Event Information: 
	Event Name: 
	Date_2: 
	Address_2: 
	Supervisor: 
	City: 
	State_2: 
	Zip Code_2: 
	Event Purpose 1: 
	Event Purpose 2: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	I understand that false or misleading information in my application or interview may result in my release: 
	Date_3: 
	Written Name: 
	Date Received: 
	PO: 
	Date Processed: 
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off


